
 
 

AGENDA 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
JUNE 22, 2015 – 5:30 PM 

 
The Board will meet for a discussion on employee pay and classification. 
 
 

RETIREMENT RECEPTION 
MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

6:00 PM – 7:00 PM 
 
The Town will hold a reception honoring Ralph Messera upon his retirement as the Director of the Public Works 
Department. 
 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

JUNE 22, 2015 - 7:00 PM 
 
 

1. Regular Meeting Called to Order 

 

2. Invocation 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Items to be Added to the Agenda 

 

5. Special Recognition of Francis Bodry 

 

6. Recognize Retiring Public Works Director Ralph Messera 

 

7. Presentation on Matthews Fire & EMS Citizens’ Academy – Lieutenant Chris Mollema 

 

8. Recess Regular Meeting for Public Hearing on a Preliminary Assessment Resolution on Oscar Drive  

9. Reconvene Regular Meeting 

 

10. Public Comment (Please sign in to speak at this time. Limited to 4 minutes) 

 

11. Reports from Boards/Committees 

A. Transportation Advisory Committee – Chair Matt Jones 

 



 

12. Consent Agenda  

A. Approve Minutes of the June 8, 2015 Meeting 

B. Approve Tax Refunds 

C. Approve Budget Ordinance Amendments to: 

1) Recognize Shared Proceeds Received through the DEA Task Force in the Amount of 

$24,862.98 

2) Recognize Overtime Reimbursements Received from DEA Task Force in the Amount of 

$715.24 

3) Recognize Controlled Substance Tax Assessment Revenues Received in the Amount of 

$760.61 

 

13. Unfinished Business 

A. Receive Monthly Planning Conference To-Do List Report 

B. Approve Resolution to Proceed with Oscar Drive Project 

 

14. New Business 

A. Update on Silver Line Transit: Jason Lawrence – Charlotte Area Transit  

B. Approve Reappropriation of Funds from General Fund to Capital Improvements Fund 

C. Receive Monthly Budget Report 

D. Update on Pedestrian Signal on South Trade Street at Plantation Estates 

E. Approve Acquisition of Permanent Sidewalk Easement 

F. Cancel Agreement to Purchase Outen Pottery Site 

 

15. Mayor’s Report 

 

16. Attorney’s Report 

A. Approve Town Attorney’s Annual Contract  
 

17. Town Manager’s Report 

 

18. Closed Session – Attorney-Client 

 

19. Closed Session - Personnel 

 

20. Adjournment 

 



Town of Matthews 



 Will expose residents and businesspersons in 
the town to the services provided 

 Will run for 6 weeks on Tuesday evenings 
 Approx. 2 hrs. each evening 

 Incorporates other agencies that the 
department frequently engages with 

 Exists with the goal of a better interaction 
between the department and the public 
(Service Excellence) 
 



 The program is open to any resident or 
businessperson in Matthews 

 Anyone age 16 and older 
 Will be expected to participate in (or minimally 

observe) all 6 sessions 
 



 The program will open with members of the 
Matthews Fire & EMS Honor Guard 

 Chief Green will present opening remarks 
 Members of the department will present the 

majority of the topics 
 Other presenters include: 

 Matthews C.E.R.T 
 Medic (Mecklenburg EMS) 
 Mecklenburg County Fire Marshal’s Office 



 Topics will range from daily operations of the 
department to equipment demonstrations to 
dispatch operation 

 Plenty of time will be allotted for hands-on  
interaction by the participants when 
appropriate and Q&A  



 Funds for this first program will be from a 
grant secured from the NC Firefighters’ Burned 
Children Fund 
 Matthews Fire & EMS has a direct relationship with 

this organization – the can trailer at Station 1 is 
handled by the FFBCF and all funds from the 
collected cans goes directly to their cause 



 Although our main goal is awareness of the 
department, an opportunity for recruitment 
exists 

 At the conclusion of the program we will plan 
an open recruitment 

 This will be for all membership types 
 Fire & EMS  
 C.E.R.T. & FireCorps  
 Explorer Post 911 (teens ages 14 – 16) 



 
 
 
 
Oscar Drive Assessment Public Hearing and Resolution to Proceed 
      
DATE: June 16, 2016 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
 
Background/Issue: 
  
The Board has accepted the petition to make improvements to Oscar Drive in the Forest Brook Subdivision and has 
adopted the Preliminary Assessment Resolution, setting a public hearing on the matter for June 22, 2015.  
 
Streets- The Public Works Department has obtained pricing for the needed work in the amount of $82,710. The amount of 
the cashed surety bond is $49,710, which is available for the project, leaving $32,969 to be assessed. The petition 
requested that this amount be shared equally among the 20 lots in the subdivision, at 100% of the cost, plus admin and 
legal costs.  
 
Street Lighting- The petition also requested that the unpaid street lighting up-front charges be also assessed by the Town 
as part of the street assessment. Unfortunately, NC General Statutes do not allow cities/towns to assess street lighting 
costs, (counties can) so the Town will need to work with the HOA to front these costs (approx. $9,000) and have the HOA 
reimburse the Town over time, perhaps a 5 year contract between the HOA and the Town. This will need to be a future 
action by the Board.  
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Open Public Hearing and receive citizen comment on the proposed project and assessment. If after closing the hearing, the 
Board wishes to proceed with the project, adopt resolution as prepared by Mr. Buckley.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The Town will be fronting the cost of $32,969, to be charged to code 452000-5314 in the new FY 15-16 budget. The 
balance will be from the cashed bond, funds to be transferred from the county to the Town.  Citizens may pay their 
assessments back to the town in a lump sum or in up to 8 annual payments at an interest rate of 5%.  
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
To identify, plan, design, fund and build transportation facilities that efficiently and effectively serve the community in a 
cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Recommended Motion: (2 motions) 
 
#1 Motion to adopt Resolution Directing that the Improvements to Oscar Drive Within the Forest Brook Subdivision be 
Undertaken as prepared by Mr. Buckley. 
 
#2 Motion that the Town Public Works Director and Finance Director meet with the HOA and develop a plan to front the 
cost of the street light fees and develop a plan for reimbursement, and present back to the Board at a future meeting.   

 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING 

CLOSED SESSION 
JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

JUNE 8, 2015 – 6:15 PM 
 
PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Pata; Commissioners John Higdon; Chris Melton, Jeff 

Miller, Kress Query and John Ross; Town Manager Hazen Blodgett 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners met in closed session with Town Manager Hazen Blodgett to discuss the Manager’s 
annual performance review. 
 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

JUNE 8, 2015 – 6:15 PM 
 

PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Pata; Commissioners John Higdon; Chris Melton, Jeff 
Miller, Kress Query and John Ross; Town Attorney Charles Buckley; Town Manager Hazen 
Blodgett; Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Assistant Town Manager Jamie Justice; Communications Director Jen Thompson; Public 

Works Director Ralph Messera; Planning Director Kathi Ingrish; Planner Mary Jo Gollnitz; 
Planning Board Chair Steve Lee, members Barbara Dement, Eric Welsh, Mike Ham, David Pratt, 
Gary Turner, David Wieser and Youth Voice Ben Dodson 

 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Buckley rendered an invocation.  
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Taylor led the audience in the Pledge. 

 
 
 

 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mr. Query to add the following: take action on Manager’s originally-proposed budget, which included a 
2.5 cent tax increase, to be added as New Business item 14C. The motion was seconded by Mr. Melton and 
unanimously approved.  
 
 
RECOGNIZE MATTHEWS PLAYHOUSE’S 20TH ANNIVERSARY 
 
Matthews Playhouse Artistic Director June Bayliss and actors from the show Wizard of Oz discussed the 
Playhouse’s twentieth anniversary and treated the audience to a song from the show. Mayor Taylor presented 
them with a proclamation honoring June 12, 2015 as Matthews Playhouse Day and encouraged everyone to 
experience the wonderful works provided by the Playhouse and its many talented participants. 
 
 
RECOGNIZE PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES’ RECEIPT OF “OUTSTANDING ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN 
COMMUNITY CONSERVATION” AWARD 
 
Mr. Melton explained that the Brightmoor neighborhood had been experiencing a problem with a creek 
intersection in the neighborhood. Water was eroding the neighborhood pedestrian bridge and the surrounding 
land. Many people from the Brightmoor homeowners’’ association, the Town of Matthews and the Mecklenburg 
Soil and Water Conservation District came up with a preservation plan to prevent further problems. Neighborhood 
residents invested their own time and sweat equity into solving the problem. Public Works staff member Mark 
Conley accepted the award on behalf of the department and Mayor said this shows how groups can work together 
and find solutions.  
 
 
PRESENTATION ON 2015 CITIZEN SURVEY – DR. PAUL FRIDAY 
 
Sociologist Dr. Paul Friday presented the results of the 2015 Citizen Survey. The residents of the community have 
very positive things to say and they also have some concerns. The survey has been issued biannually since 
2006. This year it was available online with a paper option available at the library. There were 475 responses with 
422 valid responses, giving a 4.68% margin of error, which is normal. The invalid responses were from those who 
exited the survey without entering data or who were not town residents.  
 
Dr. Friday summarized the results, explaining that 96.9% of people felt Matthews is a good place to live. 
Concerns about traffic and development were noted and people were asked if they would be willing to pay more 
taxes for road improvement. 38.7% said they would not pay any more tax; 61.1% were willing to pay something 
and 11.9% were willing to pay an additional 2 cents on the tax rate.  
 
Mayor Taylor noted the responses and written comments would be carefully reviewed.  
 
 
RECESS REGULAR MEETING FOR PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to recess the regular meeting for a public hearing on a petition to amend the zoning 
ordinance. The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved. 
 
Planning Director Kathi Ingrish introduced the members of the Planning Board in attendance: Chair Steve Lee, 
members Barbara Dement, Eric Welsh, Mike Ham, David Pratt, Gary Turner, David Wieser and Youth Voice Ben 
Dodson 
 

2 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

 
Application 2015-630: To amend the text of the existing Unified Development Ordinance to establish and provide 
parking provisions specific to animal daycare kennels and commercial kennels. 
 
Zoning Administrator Mary Jo Gollnitz explained this application seeks to revise the table of required parking in 
UDO section 155.607.7.B.4. The request is to add parking requirements for Animal Day Care Kennels and 
Commercial Kennels to the Table at one space per 1,000 square feet of private access area plus one space per 
400 square feet of public access area. The text amendment request does include bicycle parking requirements of 
two spaces or 10% of auto parking. Kennels are normally short-term parking uses. The proposed change would 
allow for more reasonable parking requirements for this particular use.  
 
Ms. Gollnitz noted that this is a text amendment that would affect the entire town and not just the applicant’s site.  
 
Peter Tatge of ESP Associates, 3475 Lakemont Boulevard, Fort Mill, South Carolina represented applicant Pet 
Paradise and addressed the Board. He explained that the Town’s code doesn’t currently include parking space 
requirements specifically for commercial kennels and instead uses the numbers for general commercial use. 
Commercial kennels have relatively little long-term traffic since it’s a quick drop-off and pick-up situation. In their 
other locations, it would be unusual for the drop-off to take more than three minutes.  
 
There was some discussion of spaces for employees and the future use of the building. Mr. Tatge explained that 
they proposed a standard based on the number of employees on the greatest shift but that planning staff advised 
using the cleaner calculation which has already been detailed.  
 
Mayor Taylor opened the floor to public comment. No one spoke in favor of or opposition to this application. The 
Planning Board will hear it on June 23rd and it will come back to the Board of Commissioners on July 13th. 
 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to reconvene the regular meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr.Ross and unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS 
 
Planning Board Chair Steve Lee gave a report on the Board’s activities (Exhibit #1 hereby referenced and made a 
part of these minutes).  
 
 
REPORT FROM PLANNING BOARD  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING RELATED ACTIONS 
 
Application 2015-629: to amend the UDO text regarding the Table of Dimensional Standards to add a footnote 
and to modify the allowed height standards in the R-12MF Zoning District. 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve the text as drafted, as it is reasonable and consistent with the Land Use Plan and 
other town policies, and because the taller ceiling height is consistent with what the typical consumer wants now. 
The motion was seconded by Mr. Pata and unanimously approved.   
 
 

3 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

Application 2015-626/Everlane: to change the zoning from RVS to R-12MF(CD) on that certain property located 
on the west side of Monroe Road between Galleria Boulevard and Gander Cove Lane and being further located 
across the street from Family Dollar Corporate and being further designated as Tax Parcel 213-231-01.  
 
Mayor Taylor noted there is a valid protest petition on file and the applicant has requested a one-month deferral.  
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to deny the deferral request. The motion was seconded by Mr. Query, who said there are 
too many things that would need to be changed before it was acceptable 
 
Applicant Matt Poindexter of Everlane Development, 401 Hawthorne Lane, Suite 110-230, Charlotte, NC 
addresses the Board. Mr. Higdon noted the considerable negative input the Board has received from the public 
and asked if there are plans to significantly change the proposal in the next month to make it more palatable to 
those who have raised objections. Mr. Poindexter said yes, they were currently studying major material changes 
to the plan, including traffic improvements, a significant unit reduction and potential alternatives for ingress and 
egress. All options are on the table.  
 
Mr. Buckley noted that substantial changes from what was presented at the public hearing could trigger the 
requirement for a new public hearing. There was some discussion of what changes would require that, and Keith 
McVean of Moore & Van Allen, PLLC, 100 N. Tryon Street, Suite 4700, Charlotte, NC discussed their proposal to 
eliminate buildings and increase buffers without changing the footprint. Mr. Buckley stated those changes would 
not require a new public hearing.  
 
Mr. Pata said changes were definitely in order, with safety concerns being a number one priority. He said he liked 
the idea of apartments in that location and he liked the proposal but without buy-in from the community expressed 
in the next month the Board will be in the same place. Mr. Ross noted that if the Board denied the deferral and 
denied the application then the application could not be brought back for a year. Mr. Buckley clarified that there 
would have to be significant changes to the proposal in order to bring it back before the completion of a one-year 
moratorium. The Board would decide if the changes were substantial enough to accept the new application in that 
time period.  
 
The motion to deny the applicant’s deferral request was denied with Taylor, Melton, Miller, Query and Ross in 
favor and Higdon and Pata in opposition.  
 
Since the deferral was denied the Board then discussed the rezoning application itself. Mr. Ross said he liked the 
concept and the idea behind it. If it could be picked up and moved to a different location he’d think about it 
differently, but since it can’t he can’t support it as it exists today. The Monroe Road Small Area Plan includes a 
requirement to, “…limits uses that generate significant new traffic.” That area already experiences bumper to 
bumper traffic and this would compound an already bad situation. It’s not the applicants’ fault but it can’t be made 
worse. Mr. Higdon said he reluctantly agreed. He used to live in the area and thinks the proposal is a really fine 
development. He particularly likes the setbacks, which are substantially more than what by-right development 
would require. He said it was a difficult thing to decide, but ultimately the citizens have spoken and he can’t 
support the development. Mr. Pata reiterated the need to get buy-in from the community. Since that hasn’t 
happened it makes it almost impossible to support the project in that location. He said the applicants may wish to 
consider the Sportsplex location for this development. Mr. Melton said he started his family in Sardis Oaks and 
knows and believes in the community. He also believes in not turning down a developer. He said the Board gets 
criticized for turning down something it’s been asking for, but stated this development isn’t what has been asked 
for by the Board or by the public. There is a difference between housing types and housing styles. Also, it is 
ridiculous to think that people wouldn’t cut through the neighborhood to get to the traffic light. The Board has only 
once chance to get this right – this is the last piece of raw land in that area. In addition, while not being negative 
toward the school, Greenway Park Elementary is a Title I school, and to think that a family is going to rent a high-
end apartment to send their children to a Title I school isn’t believable.  
 

4 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

Motion by Mr. Melton to deny application 2015-626, as it is unreasonable and inconsistent with the Matthews 
Land Use Plan and Monroe Road Small Area Plan. It does not support a mix of housing types from detached 
single family to attached condo. Mr. Query seconded and added that this has been portrayed as a high end or 
upscale development and he doesn’t believe it has reached that level. In addition, the traffic is already unbearable 
and he does not believe this much additional traffic should be added to make the development work. 
 
Mayor Taylor said he thought all the comments so far are consistent with his thoughts. This is a very heavily-
congested area of the town and the Board can’t look at this application in a vacuum. He believes the economics 
will not work to get the density down to an acceptable level. He thinks the direction the Board is going is the right 
direction, especially since the surrounding community has been so vocally concerned. There are some plusses in 
this application, such as the setbacks, but he didn’t think the positives outweighed the negatives. He did note 
some comments from emails that had been circulated; pointing out that the area’s woods will not remain wooded 
forever. At some point that wooded area will be developed and the Board needs to be sure the right type of 
development is allowed there, one which helps preserve the existing communities in the Town.  
 
Mr. McVean asked the Board to reconsider the motion to deny the deferral, saying they will be able to address all 
the issues raised in the protest petition.  
 
The motion to deny application 2015-626 was unanimously approved.  
 
 
Application 2015-627/Matthews Church of God: to change the zoning from R-12 & I-1 to RI(CD) on that certain 
property located between 517 E. John Street and 420 E. Charles Street and belonging to the Church of God and 
being further designated as Tax Parcels 215-014-05 & 19. 
 
Ms. Gollnitz noted some changes since the public hearing. The Church has reconsidered the suggestion of a 
future driveway access off East Charles Street and they’ve come up with the following language: "Future driveway 
access may be installed on E. Charles Street or through adjacent property in response to restriction of left turn 
movement at E. John Street. Any installation will be in compliance with requirements set forth by the Matthews 
Public Works Department." This note will be added to the site plan. 
 
Other minor clean-up items include the following: the new signage must be clarified on the site plan to specify it 
must be located ten feet from the sidewalk; the section number under the signage notes must be corrected; and 
arrows must be added in the approximate locations for the vehicular access points off East Charles Street or 
through the adjacent property. These items must be added to the site plan if the Board approves the application. 
 
Mr. Higdon asked if the site payed any voluntary taxes and if the rezoning would affect that. Ms. Gollnitz 
explained the church is tax-exempt and does not pay any voluntary taxes and the rezoning would not change that. 
Mr. Miller feels strongly that the connection to Charles Street will be needed in the future, specifically with the 
widening of John Street which will restrict the left turn out. 
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to approve application 2015-627, to include the items noted in Ms. Gollnitz’s memo dated 
June 3, 2015, as it is reasonable and consistent with the Land Use Plan as it provides connections for future use. 
The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved.  
 
 
Application 2015-628: to amend the UDO text to expand the process for subdivision names. 
 
Motion by Mr. Higdon to approve application 2015-628 as it is reasonable and consistent with the Land Use Plan 
and because it is a way to recognize the town’s history. The motion was seconded by Mr. Pata and unanimously 
approved.  
 

5 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

 
Master Sign Plan Revision: The Crossing 
 
Ms. Gollnitz explained that last month the Board approved the elimination of specified colors in the existing 
Master Sign Plan. Once staff realized elevation changes were also being made on site it was recognized that the 
Master Sign Plan would have to be updated to incorporate the elevation changes. The site plan originally had 
three major tenants in buildings A, B and C. Location B was eventually split to allow multiple tenant signage but 
locations A and C was not. The applicant is now requesting to allow the same type of linear footage calculation for 
the outer buildings – A and C – as was already approved for building B.  
 
Motion by Mayor Taylor to approve the revisions to the Master Sign Plan for The Crossing shopping center. The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Ross and unanimously approved.  
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Gina Hoover, 2417 Stevens Mill Road, Matthews said she was accused in a previous meeting of providing 
incorrect information. She has asked accusations to be proven in the past and they weren’t but she let that slide. 
Now she hears that people are being told that she is biased, but she could say the same of the Board. She said 
the Board should apologize to the public who had been told that the May 26th meeting was not a public meeting.  
 
John Urban, 2523 Macie Glen Court, Matthews spoke on the Everlane rezoning project. He said the Board 
missed an opportunity with the quick and immediate denial of the applicants’ deferral request. He believes that by 
doing so, the Board jeopardizes the political realm of developers in the town. Developers will spread the word that 
Everlane was not granted an opportunity to come back after a deferral. A simple deferral could have allowed for a 
potentially better project, and the Board could have denied the project in thirty days if need be. He has not seen 
the request for a deferral be denied before.  
 
Jim Swanger, 919 Tadlock Place, Matthews thanked the Board for listening to the community and for giving good 
thought to the Everlane petition, particularly that the Planning Board recommended denial and the applicants 
didn’t present what was asked of them. To give them another chance to spend the Board’s time by approving the 
deferral would not have been the right thing to do, and he applauded the Board for its actions.  
 
Amelia Stinson-Wesley, 805 Main Street, Pineville announced that she will be running for an at large seat on the 
CMS Board of Education. She previously served as the District 6 representative. Mayor Taylor commented that 
she represented Matthews very well in District 6 and had a great attitude of cooperation.  
 
 
REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 
 
Minutes from the Economic Development Advisory Committee and Environmental Advisory Committee were 
submitted. There were no comments or questions.  

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approve Minutes of the 2015 Planning Conference and May 18 & 26, 2015 Meetings 
B. Approve Cooperative Agreement with Mecklenburg County for Community Development Block 

Grant Program 
C. Approve Temporary Closure of Covenant Church Lane During the Seek the City Event at Christ 

Covenant Church, June 22-26, 2015 
D. Approve Technology Reimbursement to Commissioner Melton in the Amount of $195.30 

6 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

E. Accept Zoning Application 2015-631: Armors/Petsuites; Moore Road, from B-H to B-D(CD) for a 
Commercial Kennel, and set Public Hearing for August 10, 2015 

F. Approve Tax Refunds 
G. Approve Budget Ordinance Amendments to: 

1) Recognize Controlled Substance Tax Assessment Revenues Received in the Amount of 
$732.21 

2) Recognize Donation to the Matthews Police DARE Program in the Amount of $1,750 
 

Motion by Mr. Query to approve consent agenda item A through G2. Seconded by Mr. Miller and unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
AWARD CONTRACT FOR CAMPUS RIDGE RELOCATION/PROJECT U-4713B  
 
There was some discussion of this project, which was formerly known as McKee Road Section B. Mr. Miller said a 
lot more people would benefit from the completion of Section A, and asked how B was chosen ahead of A. Public 
Works Director Ralph Messera explained that it was a decision made at the MPO level seven or eight years ago 
when there was a small amount of funding. Section B is less expensive and it will enhance accessibility to CPCC, 
which helps its ranking. Mr. Melton noted that Section A would help eliminate or cut down on cut-through traffic 
through the Eastwood Forest neighborhood and will help with traffic coming up through Stallings. He suggested 
having the Four Town Alliance review this and possibly look for a regional solution with some cost-sharing. Mr. 
Higdon asked how Blythe Development was related to Blythe Construction and Mr. Messera explained the 
companies were split off some time in past years. Mr. Pata noted this project was chosen based on the 
information available, the ranking system and the best use of the limited amount of funds available for road 
projects. 
 
Motion by Mr. Pata to award the contract for the Campus Ridge Relocation Project (U-4713B) to Blythe 
Development in the amount of $1,676,202, subject to final concurrence by the NCDOT and the FHWA, and 
authorize the Manager to sign any necessary documents related to the award. The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Higdon. 
 
Mr. Query said he would support the motion but wants to be very careful on how the Town’s money is spent. The 
other segment would help immediately and the Town needs to work hard on that.  
 
The motion to award the contract to Blythe Development was unanimously approved.  
 
 
AWARD CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION FOR CAMPUS RIDGE 
RELOCATION /PROJECT U-4713B 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve the construction engineering and inspection contract to SEPI Engineering and 
Construction, subject to concurrence by the NCDOT and the FHWA, and authorize the manager to sign all 
necessary documents related to the contract. The motion was seconded by Mr. Melton and unanimously 
approved.  
 
 
 
 

7 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

TAKE ACTION ON MANAGER’S ORIGINAL RECOMMENDED BUDGET/ ADOPT FY 2015-16 GENERAL 
FUND AND TOURISM BUDGET ORDINANCE, CAPITAL OUTLAY/EQUIPMENT PLAN AND FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Mayor Taylor explained the Board members have reviewed the Manager’s recommended budget, which included 
a tax rate increase of 2.5 cents. He suggested accepting that budget with certain changes that would reduce the 
tax increase by a quarter cent, for a rate increase of 2.25 cents 

1. Remove the technology enhancements to the Hood Room - $58,000 
2. Revise the solid waste budget to reflect the updated CPI factor – approximately $19,000 
3. Adjust the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources budget to use Tourism Fund dollars instead of 

General Fund dollars for some enhancements in Stumptown Park – approximately $8,000 
The total of these reductions should be approximately $85,000, or a quarter of a cent reduction from the 
recommended tax rate increase.  Mayor Taylor also suggested looking favorably at the proposed fee schedule 
revisions with the exception of the proposed changes to the rental fees for Park and Rec, and review those at a 
later date. 
 
The changes suggested by Mayor Taylor would result in a tax rate of 34.00 cents per $100 property value for 
fiscal year 2015-16. This would result in a tax increase of approximately $45 per year on the town’s average 
house value of $200,000.  
 
Mr. Higdon asked if the removal of the Park and Rec fee increases would negatively affect the budget and Mr. 
Blodgett said no. It would not be a problem to take some time to further evaluate these proposed changes, likely 
at the next Planning Conference. Mayor Taylor noted it would be important for the Board to have more lengthy 
discussions on how the rates are derived, how they compare to surrounding communities and the difference 
between residential and non-residential rates. Mr. Pata said the residential fees needed to be reviewed but he 
thought the proposed changes to the non-resident fees were fine. He suggested approving the non-resident 
potion. Mayor Taylor suggested it might be better to look at all rental rates together.  
 
Mr. Miller noted the changes just noted would result in a tax rate of 34 cents per one hundred dollars of value, and 
pointed out that during the years 2009 through 2011 the tax rate was 33.25 cents per one hundred dollars of 
value. 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve the Manager’s recommended budget with the following exceptions: 1. remove the 
technology enhancements to the Hood Room for a savings of $58,000; 2. revise the solid waste budget to reflect 
the updated CPI factor for a savings of approximately $19,000; 3. adjust the Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Resources budget to use Tourism Fund dollars instead of General Fund dollars for some enhancements in 
Stumptown Park for a savings of approximately $8,000, all resulting in a tax rate for fiscal year 2015-16 at 34 
centsper hundred dollars of value, and updating the fee schedule to include the recommended revisions to 
Planning-related fees but leaving the Park and Rec fees as they were on the 2014-15 fiscal year fee schedule. 
The motion was seconded by Mr. Pata. 
 
Mr. Melton said the amount of money his family will pay – about a $3 increase per month – to live in the Town of 
Matthews is acceptable, saying the Town gives a good value for the extra money. He noted the three anomalies 
that caused the Town to have less money to spend this year: the repeal of privilege license taxes, the revaluation 
refunds, and the payments for the South Trade Street road improvements that the citizens requested. Mr. Pata 
recognized State Representative Bill Brawley for his help in the legislature that allowed Town staff to join the state 
insurance plan, which will result in significant savings. Mr. Higdon thanked the Manager and staff for their work. 
He noted that sometimes people think budgets are padded knowing they’ll be reduced but that isn’t true here – he 
and the rest of the Board examined the budget closely and there are really no other places to cut without cutting 
into citizen services. This is a very conservative budget.  
 
The motion to approve the budget as previously stated was unanimously approved. 
 

8 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 8, 2015 

 
 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
None 
 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Buckley asked for permission to attend the Municipal Attorney’s Summer Conference August 6-8.  
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to allow Mr. Buckley to attend the Municipal Attorney’s Summer Conference under the 
standard travel policy. The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved. 
 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Blodgett explained that the aesthetic bill was in the House Regulatory Reform committee, which rejected all 
the amendments proposed by the Town and the League of Municipalities.  

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mr. Pata to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ross and unanimously approved.  The meeting 
adjourned at 9:21 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Town Clerk 
 

9 
 



 

 
 
 
 MEMORANDUM  
 

To:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
From:  Shana Robertson, Finance Department 
CC:  Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
Date:  June 22, 2015 
Re:  Tax Refunds  
 

 
The Interlocal Agreement between Mecklenburg County and the Town of Matthews states they bill and collect the 
Ad Valorem taxes for Matthews. Upon collection, the County remits those to the Town. Matthews is responsible 
for issuing the refund if an adjustment occurs on the tax bill after the payment has been received. Refunds are 
issued for various reasons.  
 
Mecklenburg County Tax Office has submitted the attached list of taxpayers for refunds. The list reflects the tax 
year, taxpayer, location, adjustment made and reason for adjustment, along with the refund amount. G.S. 105 
requires that tax refunds or releases shall be approved by the governing body.  
 
These reports reflect tax appeals, settlements, and adjustments made, as received from the Mecklenburg County 
Tax Office.  
 
Total returns: $24,906.03 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: The Mayor and Board of Commissioners approve the tax refunds. 

 



Bill Number BOCC 
MONTH

Parcel # Source 
Type

Adj # Adjustment 
Reason

Date Of 
Adjustment

Refund Recipient Name Address Line 1 Address Line 2 City State Zip Code Payment Date For 
Interest

Total Refund Interest if Pd 
by 7/2/15

0001938057-2013-2013-0000-00 Aug-14 19346228 REI 246231 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 AHRENS, PRISCILLA M 2443 BLUEBERRY RIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                           5.72 0.42 6.14                                      
0002003538-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21520101 REI 289694 SL 362 Adjustment 1/6/15 AMAYA, OSCAR PO BOX 690664 CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012                         23.29 4.06 27.35                                    
0001933092-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 19324539 REI 427158 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 BALDWIN OFFICE PROPERTIES LLC 9009-10 JM KEYNES DR CHARLOTTE NC 28262 1/26/2012                           0.56 0.10 0.66                                      
0001934858-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 19333928 REI 352834 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 BARTOLOMO, ROSANNE 1460 STONEDOWN LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/13/2012                         13.60 2.36 15.96                                    
0001934858-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 19333928 REI 305327 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 BARTOLOMO, ROSANNE 1460 STONEDOWN LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013                         13.31 1.65 14.96                                    
0001934858-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 19333928 REI 305930 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 BARTOLOMO, ROSANNE 1460 STONEDOWN LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/9/2014                         14.28 1.05 15.33                                    
0002002190-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21510283 REI 327127 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 BIASI, FRANCIS X 2602 PENNEFEATHER CT LINCOLN CA 95648 1/6/2012                         11.19 1.95 13.14                                    
0002002190-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21510283 REI 326717 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 BIASI, FRANCIS X 2602 PENNEFEATHER CT LINCOLN CA 95648 1/8/2013                         11.19 1.39 12.58                                    
0002002190-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21510283 REI 261698 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 BIASI, FRANCIS X 2602 PENNEFEATHER CT LINCOLN CA 95648 1/7/2014                         11.74 0.87 12.61                                    
0002053507-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22739151 REI 327288 SL 362 Adjustment 2/1/15 BOWLIN, DANIEL L 23 BURRIANA SAN CLEMENTE CA 97672 1/6/2012                           1.21 0.21 1.42                                      
0002050686-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22723736 REI 352277 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 BURKE, LEONARD D 945 MATIANUCK AV WINDSOR CT 6095 1/6/2012                           6.35 1.11 7.46                                      
0002050686-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22723736 REI 352317 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 BURKE, LEONARD D 945 MATIANUCK AV WINDSOR CT 6095 1/8/2013                           6.35 0.79 7.14                                      
0002050686-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22723736 REI 352368 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 BURKE, LEONARD D 945 MATIANUCK AV WINDSOR CT 6095 1/7/2014                           6.67 0.49 7.16                                      
0002050686-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22723736 REI 352405 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 BURKE, LEONARD D 945 MATIANUCK AV WINDSOR CT 6095 1/6/2015                           6.67 0.16 6.83                                      
0002056095-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22756291 REI 247465 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 CAVANAUGH, WILLIAM E 3100 TRADITION CIR APT 3113 MOUNT PLEASANT SC 29466 1/6/2012                         81.98 14.30 96.28                                    
0002050103-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722127 REI 349643 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 CLARK, BATONDA ANN 4608 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/30/2012                           4.68 0.76 5.44                                      
0002050103-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722127 REI 350470 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 CLARK, BATONDA ANN 4608 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2013                           4.65 0.56 5.21                                      
0002050103-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722127 REI 351114 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 CLARK, BATONDA ANN 4608 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                           4.76 0.35 5.11                                      
0002004128-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21526121 REI 352963 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         76.84 13.40 90.24                                    
0002004128-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21526121 REI 307955 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         76.84 9.53 86.37                                    
0002004128-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21526121 REI 308638 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         80.64 5.98 86.62                                    
0002004128-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21526121 REI 309375 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         80.64 1.96 82.60                                    
0002004132-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21526125 REI 352964 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         21.18 3.69 24.87                                    
0002004132-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21526125 REI 307957 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         21.18 2.63 23.81                                    
0002004132-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21526125 REI 308640 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         22.23 1.65 23.88                                    
0002004132-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21526125 REI 309378 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 CLOANINGER, KENNETH G 13920 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         22.23 0.54 22.77                                    
0002051501-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22728118 REI 353080 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 COHEN, WAYNE P PO BOX 687 INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 2/6/2012                         39.79 6.77 46.56                                    
0002051501-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22728118 REI 352318 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 COHEN, WAYNE P PO BOX 687 INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/8/2013                         38.72 4.80 43.52                                    
0002051501-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22728118 REI 309080 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 COHEN, WAYNE P PO BOX 687 INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/7/2014                         40.64 3.01 43.65                                    
0002054528-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22746151 REI 326352 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 COLOMBO, CHRISTINE M 379 OLD ECCLES RD BERKLEY WV 25801 1/6/2012                         68.37 11.92 80.29                                    
0002054528-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22746151 REI 326773 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 COLOMBO, CHRISTINE M 379 OLD ECCLES RD BERKLEY WV 25801 1/8/2013                         68.37 8.48 76.85                                    
0002054528-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22746151 REI 326992 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 COLOMBO, CHRISTINE M 379 OLD ECCLES RD BERKLEY WV 25801 1/7/2014                         71.76 5.32 77.08                                    
0002054528-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 22746151 REI 268569 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 COLOMBO, CHRISTINE M 379 OLD ECCLES RD BERKLEY WV 25801 1/6/2015                         71.76 1.74 73.50                                    
0002055012-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22750142 REI 264855 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 DAVENPORT, THOMAS G JR 3515 CRESCENT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/13/2012                         21.60 3.57 25.17                                    
0002055012-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22750142 REI 266434 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 DAVENPORT, THOMAS G JR 3515 CRESCENT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/11/2013                         20.50 2.28 22.78                                    
0002053509-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22739153 REI 326346 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 DIRAMIO, HELEN C 2430 CRESCENT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           2.42 0.42 2.84                                      
0001992770-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21302108 REI 280378 SL 362 Adjustment 12/21/14 DURSO, GWEN T 540 LYNDERHILL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                       146.11 25.48 171.59                                  
0001992770-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21302108 REI 280452 SL 362 Adjustment 12/21/14 DURSO, GWEN T 540 LYNDERHILL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                       140.97 17.48 158.45                                  
0001933108-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 19324549 REI 427160 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 EARTHEN SKIES LLC 7128 OLD PROVIDENCE CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012                         67.16 11.71 78.87                                    
0001933108-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 19324549 REI 427161 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 EARTHEN SKIES LLC 7128 OLD PROVIDENCE CHARLOTTE NC 28226 2/23/2013                         68.07 8.01 76.08                                    
0001933108-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 19324549 REI 343321 SL 362 Adjustment 2/7/15 EARTHEN SKIES LLC 7128 OLD PROVIDENCE CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2015                         69.53 1.69 71.22                                    
0001933108-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 19324549 REI 353587 SL 362 Adjustment 2/15/15 EARTHEN SKIES LLC 7128 OLD PROVIDENCE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/7/2014                         69.53 5.15 74.68                                    
0002050571-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22723512 REI 353071 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FINCHER, DAWN PRIVATTE 4072 NW 37TH TERRACE GAINSVILLE FL 32606 1/6/2012                         17.54 3.06 20.60                                    
0002050571-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22723512 REI 308305 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FINCHER, DAWN PRIVATTE 4072 NW 37TH TERRACE GAINSVILLE FL 32606 1/8/2013                         17.54 2.17 19.71                                    
0002050571-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22723512 REI 309017 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FINCHER, DAWN PRIVATTE 4072 NW 37TH TERRACE GAINSVILLE FL 32606 1/7/2014                         18.42 1.37 19.79                                    
0002050571-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22723512 REI 309789 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FINCHER, DAWN PRIVATTE 4072 NW 37TH TERRACE GAINSVILLE FL 32606 1/6/2015                         18.42 0.45 18.87                                    
0002052986-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22736221 REI 353107 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FITZGERALD, THOMAS F 283 CANOE DR MILL SPRINGS NC 28756 1/6/2012                         32.67 5.70 38.37                                    
0002052986-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22736221 REI 353108 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FITZGERALD, THOMAS F 283 CANOE DR MILL SPRINGS NC 28756 1/8/2013                         27.22 3.37 30.59                                    
0002052986-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22736221 REI 353110 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FITZGERALD, THOMAS F 283 CANOE DR MILL SPRINGS NC 28756 1/7/2014                         28.58 2.12 30.70                                    
0002052986-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22736221 REI 353111 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FITZGERALD, THOMAS F 283 CANOE DR MILL SPRINGS NC 28756 1/6/2015                         28.58 0.69 29.27                                    
0001934859-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 19333929 REI 352838 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 FOX, BOBBY B 1115 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           8.17 1.42 9.59                                      
0001934859-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 19333929 REI 305328 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FOX, BOBBY B 1115 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                           7.87 0.98 8.85                                      
0001934859-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 19333929 REI 305931 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FOX, BOBBY B 1115 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                           8.25 0.61 8.86                                      
0001934859-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 19333929 REI 306572 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 FOX, BOBBY B 1115 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                           8.25 0.20 8.45                                      
0002002056-2011-2011-0000-00 Jan-15 21510114 REI 386214 SL 362 Adjustment 3/8/15 GALLIS, BILL 4417 INDIAN TRAIL WAXHAW RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012                       772.28 134.67 906.95                                  
0002002056-2012-2012-0000-00 Jan-15 21510114 REI 386237 SL 362 Adjustment 3/8/15 GALLIS, BILL 4417 INDIAN TRAIL WAXHAW RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/8/2013                       768.35 95.25 863.60                                  
0002002056-2013-2013-0000-00 Jan-15 21510114 REI 379311 SL 362 Adjustment 2/28/15 GALLIS, BILL 4417 WAXHAW INDIAN TRAIL RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/7/2014                       632.15 46.85 679.00                                  
0002002056-2014-2014-0000-00 Jan-15 21510114 REI 380375 SL 362 Adjustment 2/28/15 GALLIS, BILL 4417 WAXHAW INDIAN TRAIL RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2015                       632.15 15.33 647.48                                  
0001933335-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327208 REI 357996 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933336-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327209 REI 357997 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933337-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327210 REI 357998 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933338-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327211 REI 357999 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933339-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327212 REI 358000 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933345-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327216 REI 358001 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933348-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327218 REI 358002 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933349-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327219 REI 358003 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933351-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327221 REI 358004 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933352-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327222 REI 358005 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933355-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327225 REI 358006 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933356-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327226 REI 358007 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933357-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327227 REI 358008 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933358-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327228 REI 358009 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.59 0.24 1.83                                      
0001933359-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327229 REI 358010 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933360-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327230 REI 358011 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933361-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327231 REI 358012 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0001933369-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327238 REI 358013 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 GIBRALTAR COMMERICAL III LLC 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044 6/18/2012                           1.28 0.19 1.47                                      
0002002715-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21513257 REI 352935 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HARMON, KEVIN A 1900 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                       137.04 23.90 160.94                                  
0002002715-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21513257 REI 352936 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HARMON, KEVIN A 1900 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/14/2013                       139.79 17.22 157.01                                  
0002002715-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21513257 REI 352937 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HARMON, KEVIN A 1900 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/18/2014                       148.87 9.61 158.48                                  
0002002715-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21513257 REI 306958 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 HARMON, KEVIN A 1900 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                       143.83 3.49 147.32                                  
0002055306-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22752238 REI 353116 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HOLMAN, ROGER E JR 2904 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         24.20 4.22 28.42                                    
0002055306-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22752238 REI 428277 SL 362 Adjustment 4/20/15 HOLMAN, ROGER E JR 2904 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         24.20 3.00 27.20                                    
0002055306-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22752238 REI 311857 SL 362 Adjustment 1/17/15 HOLMAN, ROGER E JR 2904 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         25.40 1.88 27.28                                    
0001934757-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 19333768 REI 352831 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HOLMES, MICHAEL TODD 300 WASHINGTON ST MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2012                         29.95 5.22 35.17                                    
0001934757-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 19333768 REI 305291 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 HOLMES, MICHAEL TODD 300 WASHINGTON ST. MONROE NC 28112 1/8/2013                         28.74 3.56 32.30                                    
0001934757-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 19333768 REI 305893 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 HOLMES, MICHAEL TODD 300 WASHINGTON ST. MONROE NC 28112 1/7/2014                         30.16 2.24 32.40                                    
0001934757-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 19333768 REI 306530 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 HOLMES, MICHAEL TODD 300 WASHINGTON ST. MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2015                         30.16 0.73 30.89                                    
0002050179-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722223 REI 349658 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HORNE, LINDSEY RAY 5105 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/27/2012                         15.13 2.53 17.66                                    
0002050179-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722223 REI 350486 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HORNE, LINDSEY RAY 5105 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         14.52 1.80 16.32                                    
0001936589-2012-2012-0000-00 Sep-14 19340604 REI 234322 SL 362 Adjustment 11/15/14 HORTON, WILLIAM A 3420 LUDMAN WAY MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013                       156.09 19.35 175.44                                  
0001936589-2013-2013-0000-00 Sep-14 19340604 REI 221035 SL 362 Adjustment 11/8/14 HORTON, WILLIAM A 3420 LUDMAN WAY MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014                       163.83 12.14 175.97                                  
0001936589-2014-2014-0000-00 Sep-14 19340604 REI 224570 SL 362 Adjustment 11/8/14 HORTON, WILLIAM A 3420 LUDMAN WAY MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2015                       163.83 3.97 167.80                                  
0002051609-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22728259 REI 353099 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HUTCHINS, MONTE PO BOX 435 HUBERT NC 28539 1/6/2012                         19.05 3.32 22.37                                    
0002051609-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22728259 REI 353101 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HUTCHINS, MONTE PO BOX 435 HUBERT NC 28539 4/2/2013                         17.97 2.02 19.99                                    
0002051609-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22728259 REI 353102 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HUTCHINS, MONTE PO BOX 435 HUBERT NC 28539 1/8/2014                         18.82 1.39 20.21                                    
0002051609-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22728259 REI 309909 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 HUTCHINS, MONTE PO BOX 435 HUBERT NC 28539 1/6/2015                         18.09 0.44 18.53                                    
0002049678-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22721229 REI 349625 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HYLTON, MILDRED F SUTTON 176 WOODBERRY ST WHITE LAKE NC 28337 7/31/2012                    1,313.78 191.85 1,505.63                               
0002049678-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22721229 REI 350452 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HYLTON, MILDRED F SUTTON 176 WOODBERRY ST WHITE LAKE NC 28337 5/28/2013                    1,295.28 135.74 1,431.02                               
0002049678-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22721229 REI 351096 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HYLTON, MILDRED F SUTTON 176 WOODBERRY ST WHITE LAKE NC 28337 9/17/2014                    1,398.34 55.17 1,453.51                               
0002049682-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22721231 REI 349627 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HYLTON, SCOTT AUSTIN 176 WOODBERRY ST WHITE LAKE NC 28337 7/31/2012                       103.74 15.15 118.89                                  
0002049682-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22721231 REI 350454 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 HYLTON, SCOTT AUSTIN 176 WOODBERRY ST WHITE LAKE NC 28337 5/28/2013                       102.28 10.72 113.00                                  
0002050335-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722510 REI 349668 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 INNIS, JOHN ADAM 4607 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/23/2012                           4.65 0.78 5.43                                      
0002050335-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722510 REI 350497 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 INNIS, JOHN ADAM 4607 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2013                           4.66 0.56 5.22                                      
0002050335-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722510 REI 351143 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 INNIS, JOHN ADAM 4607 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/28/2014                           4.89 0.33 5.22                                      
0002055046-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22750166 REI 427631 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 J  M INVESTMENTS LLC . 6205 KATE RD MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012                       155.48 27.11 182.59                                  
0002055046-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22750166 REI 427632 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 J  M INVESTMENTS LLC . 6205 KATE RD MONROE NC 28110 2/21/2013                       159.76 18.84 178.60                                  
0002055046-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22750166 REI 427633 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 J  M INVESTMENTS LLC . 6205 KATE RD MONROE NC 28110 1/7/2014                       163.19 12.09 175.28                                  
0002055046-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 22750166 REI 427634 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 J  M INVESTMENTS LLC . 6205 KATE RD MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2015                       163.19 3.96 167.15                                  
0002051537-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22728210 REI 353094 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 JONES, PAULA GORDON 7527 HURSTBOURNE GREEN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012                         60.20 10.50 70.70                                    
0002051537-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22728210 REI 353095 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 JONES, PAULA GORDON 7527 HURSTBOURNE GREEN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013                         60.20 7.46 67.66                                    
0002051537-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22728210 REI 309093 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 JONES, PAULA GORDON 7527 HURSTBOURNE GREEN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014                         63.18 4.68 67.86                                    
0002051537-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22728210 REI 309875 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 JONES, PAULA GORDON 7527 HURSTBOURNE GREEN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2015                         63.18 1.53 64.71                                    
0002050356-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722611 REI 349675 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 JOSEPH, HAROLD 4515 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 6/4/2012                           4.80 0.74 5.54                                      
0002050356-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722611 REI 350505 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 JOSEPH, HAROLD 4515 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/4/2013                           4.74 0.53 5.27                                      
0002050356-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722611 REI 351151 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 JOSEPH, HAROLD 4515 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/7/2014                           4.96 0.31 5.27                                      
0002003223-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21517216 REI 327129 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 KAPORDELIS, CHARLES J 2909 SHETLAND RIDGE DR VALRICO FL 33596 1/6/2012                         20.57 3.59 24.16                                    
0002003223-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21517216 REI 326722 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 KAPORDELIS, CHARLES J 2909 SHETLAND RIDGE DR VALRICO FL 33596 1/8/2013                         19.36 2.40 21.76                                    
0002003223-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21517216 REI 326948 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 KAPORDELIS, CHARLES J 2909 SHETLAND RIDGE DR VALRICO FL 33596 1/7/2014                         20.32 1.51 21.83                                    
0002003223-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 21517216 REI 327078 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 KAPORDELIS, CHARLES J 2909 SHETLAND RIDGE DR VALRICO FL 33596 1/22/2015                         20.73 0.46 21.19                                    
0002050337-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722601 REI 426807 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 KLUTZ, RICKY LEE 4519 MORNING WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/9/2012                           4.91 0.79 5.70                                      
0002050337-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722601 REI 350499 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 KLUTZ, RICKY LEE 4520 MORNING WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                           4.73 0.59 5.32                                      
0002050337-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722601 REI 351145 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 KLUTZ, RICKY LEE 4520 MORNING WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                           4.77 0.35 5.12                                      
0002056050-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22756242 REI 418325 SL 362 Adjustment 4/1/15 KOINIS XENOPHON 2223 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         69.58 8.63 78.21                                    
0002056050-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22756242 REI 247538 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 KOINIS, XENOPHON 2223 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         73.03 5.41 78.44                                    
0001936164-2011-2011-0000-00 May-14 19339267 REI 212405 SL 362 Adjustment 11/1/14 L RANGE R/T/U/A, . 2206 ANNECY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           5.14 0.90 6.04                                      
0001992835-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21302161 REI 327095 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 LAMBETH, JOYCE R 309 SARDIS GROVE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         90.75 15.83 106.58                                  
0001992835-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21302161 REI 256083 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 LAMBETH, JOYCE R 309 SARDIS GROVE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         87.72 10.87 98.59                                    
0001992835-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21302161 REI 257132 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 LAMBETH, JOYCE R 309 SARDIS GROVE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         92.07 6.82 98.89                                    
0002046750-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22702610 REI 349599 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEE, SHICK N 1518 E BARDEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226-5832 1/17/2012                         45.70 7.90 53.60                                    
0002046750-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22702610 REI 350431 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEE, SHICK N 1518 E BARDEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226-5832 3/29/2013                         44.77 5.06 49.83                                    
0002046750-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22702610 REI 351076 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEE, SHICK N 1518 E BARDEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226-5832 2/25/2014                         46.80 3.15 49.95                                    
0002056612-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22761289 REI 349712 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                       141.57 24.69 166.26                                  
0002056612-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22761289 REI 350533 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                       140.05 17.36 157.41                                  
0002056612-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22761289 REI 351179 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                       147.00 10.89 157.89                                  
0002056613-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22761290 REI 349713 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432  PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         40.23 7.02 47.25                                    
0002056613-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22761290 REI 350534 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432  PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         40.23 4.99 45.22                                    
0002056613-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22761290 REI 351180 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEWIS, HOWARD L 1432  PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         42.23 3.13 45.36                                    
0002050194-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722303 REI 349662 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEYVA, ARGIMIRO RAMIREZ 13911 WOODSTAR RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         18.51 3.23 21.74                                    
0002050194-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722303 REI 350490 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEYVA, ARGIMIRO RAMIREZ 13911 WOODSTAR RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         18.51 2.29 20.80                                    
0002050194-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722303 REI 351136 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 LEYVA, ARGIMIRO RAMIREZ 13911 WOODSTAR RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/11/2014                         19.43 1.43 20.86                                    
0002047351-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22703555 REI 327287 SL 362 Adjustment 2/1/15 LIU, XIONG 1128 LOST OAK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012                         19.06 3.32 22.38                                    
0002047351-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22703555 REI 327238 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 LIU, XIONG 1128 LOST OAK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013                         19.06 2.36 21.42                                    
0002047351-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22703555 REI 327250 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 LIU, XIONG 1128 LOST OAK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014                         20.01 1.48 21.49                                    
0002047351-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 22703555 REI 327257 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 LIU, XIONG 1128 LOST OAK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015                         20.01 0.49 20.50                                    
0002049676-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22721228 REI 427166 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MARTIN, H W 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012                       405.65 70.74 476.39                                  
0002049676-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22721228 REI 427167 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MARTIN, H W 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013                       405.65 50.29 455.94                                  
0002049676-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22721228 REI 427168 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MARTIN, H W 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014                       425.77 31.55 457.32                                  
0002049676-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 22721228 REI 427169 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MARTIN, H W 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2015                       425.77 10.32 436.09                                  



0002054124-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22743180 REI 326349 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 MARTIN, MATTHEW J 409 PORT ROYAL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         23.59 4.11 27.70                                    
0002054124-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22743180 REI 266322 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 MARTIN, MATTHEW J 409 PORT ROYAL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         23.59 2.92 26.51                                    
0002054124-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22743180 REI 267354 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 MARTIN, MATTHEW J 409 PORT ROYAL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         24.76 1.83 26.59                                    
0002054124-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 22743180 REI 268469 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 MARTIN, MATTHEW J 409 PORT ROYAL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         24.76 0.60 25.36                                    
0002052100-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22731120 REI 327202 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 MASUNDA, PANZU CHARLIE 2218 BANCROFT ST CHARLOTTE NC 28206 1/6/2012                           3.93 0.69 4.62                                      
0002050181-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722224 REI 349659 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MCMILLIAN, JAMES RAY PO BOX 2117 MATTHEWS NC 28106 2/6/2012                           4.69 0.80 5.49                                      
0002050181-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722224 REI 350487 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MCMILLIAN, JAMES RAY PO BOX 2117 MATTHEWS NC 28106 2/8/2013                           4.73 0.57 5.30                                      
0002050181-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722224 REI 351133 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MCMILLIAN, JAMES RAY PO BOX 2117 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/31/2014                           5.02 0.36 5.38                                      
0002053758-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22740289 REI 350522 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MEYER, ARNOT H 3026 WAXHAW CROSSING DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/8/2013                       255.31 31.65 286.96                                  
0002053758-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22740289 REI 351167 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MEYER, ARNOT H 3026 WAXHAW CROSSING DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/7/2014                       268.60 19.91 288.51                                  
0002053758-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 22740289 REI 351894 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MEYER, ARNOT H 3026 WAXHAW CROSSING DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2015                       268.60 6.51 275.11                                  
0002053758-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22740289 REI 427171 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MEYER, ARNOT H 3036 WAXHAW CROSSING DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012                       259.84 45.31 305.15                                  
0002003538-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21520101 REI 289695 SL 362 Adjustment 1/6/15 MILLER, JEFF A 806 BRENHAM LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         19.36 2.40 21.76                                    
0002003538-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21520101 REI 289692 SL 362 Adjustment 1/6/15 MILLER, JEFF A 806 BRENHAM LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         20.32 1.51 21.83                                    
0002003538-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 21520101 REI 289693 SL 362 Adjustment 1/6/15 MILLER, JEFF A 806 BRENHAM LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         20.32 0.49 20.81                                    
0002056026-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22756226 REI 423940 SL 362 Adjustment 4/5/15 MILLS, SYLVIA ANN (N/C) 1212 E FRANKLIN ST MONROE NC 28112 1/7/2014                         71.76 5.32 77.08                                    
0002051734-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22729201 REI 359257 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 MINDER, JOSEPH K PO BOX 8149 ST THOMAS VI 801 5/23/2012                       109.26 16.99 126.25                                  
0002051734-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22729201 REI 359267 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 MINDER, JOSEPH K PO BOX 8149 ST THOMAS VI 801 6/6/2013                       104.38 10.81 115.19                                  
0002051734-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22729201 REI 359275 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 MINDER, JOSEPH K PO BOX 8149 ST THOMAS VI 801 1/7/2014                       109.22 8.09 117.31                                  
0002051734-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22729201 REI 359281 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 MINDER, JOSEPH K PO BOX 8149 ST THOMAS VI 801 1/6/2015                       109.22 2.65 111.87                                  
0002046670-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22702408 REI 427163 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 MORRIS, JERRY D 2905 FOREST LAWN DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012                           4.84 0.84 5.68                                      
0002046358-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22701206 REI 353060 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MULLER, MITCH PO BOX 3569 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012                         30.25 5.28 35.53                                    
0002046358-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22701206 REI 353061 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MULLER, MITCH PO BOX 3569 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013                         30.25 3.75 34.00                                    
0002046358-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22701206 REI 353062 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 MULLER, MITCH PO BOX 3569 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014                         31.75 2.35 34.10                                    
0002046358-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22701206 REI 309648 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 MULLER, MITCH PO BOX 3569 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015                         31.75 0.77 32.52                                    
0002056050-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22756242 REI 186287 SL 362 Adjustment 9/13/14 MYSLINSKI, STEPHEN V 2231 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         69.58 12.13 81.71                                    
0002047369-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22703569 REI 327274 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 NELSON, JAMES E 1643 N DEWITT AVE CLOVIS CA 93619 1/6/2012                           5.14 0.90 6.04                                      
0002047369-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22703569 REI 326768 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 NELSON, JAMES E 1643 N DEWITT AVE CLOVIS CA 93619 1/8/2013                           5.14 0.64 5.78                                      
0002047369-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22703569 REI 326985 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 NELSON, JAMES E 1643 N DEWITT AVE CLOVIS CA 93619 1/7/2014                           5.39 0.40 5.79                                      
0002047369-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 22703569 REI 327086 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 NELSON, JAMES E 1643 N DEWITT AVE CLOVIS CA 93619 1/6/2015                           5.39 0.13 5.52                                      
0002053567-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22739237 REI 326347 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 NICHOLS, CHARLES D JR 8213 LAUGHING WATERS TRL MCKINNEY TX 75070 1/6/2012                           1.51 0.26 1.77                                      
0002621989-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22717229 REI 247463 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 NUTTER, BENEDICT E 7618  S E 172ND FIELDCREST ST THE VILLAGES FL 32162 1/6/2012                         68.36 11.92 80.28                                    
0002621989-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22717229 REI 247494 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 NUTTER, BENEDICT E 7618  S E 172ND FIELDCREST ST THE VILLAGES FL 32162 1/8/2013                         68.36 8.47 76.83                                    
0002621989-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22717229 REI 247522 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 NUTTER, BENEDICT E 7618  S E 172ND FIELDCREST ST THE VILLAGES FL 32162 1/7/2014                         71.75 5.32 77.07                                    
0002002574-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21513140 REI 352931 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 OUTEN, LINDSEY 2500 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         50.52 8.81 59.33                                    
0002002574-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21513140 REI 352932 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 OUTEN, LINDSEY 2500 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         49.31 6.11 55.42                                    
0002002574-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21513140 REI 306205 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 OUTEN, LINDSEY 2500 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         51.76 3.84 55.60                                    
0002002574-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21513140 REI 306871 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 OUTEN, LINDSEY 2500 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         51.76 1.26 53.02                                    
0002050136-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722201 REI 427626 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 OXENDINE, CRYSTAL M 5120 FORESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/8/2012                         12.13 2.06 14.19                                    
0002050136-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722201 REI 427627 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 OXENDINE, CRYSTAL M 5120 FORESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/4/2013                         12.22 1.42 13.64                                    
0002050136-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722201 REI 351123 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 OXENDINE, CRYSTAL M 5120 FORESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 5/5/2014                         13.00 0.75 13.75                                    
0002050336-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22722511 REI 349669 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 OXENDINE, HAROLD 4601 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/3/2012                         11.19 1.91 13.10                                    
0002050336-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22722511 REI 350498 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 OXENDINE, HAROLD 4601 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 6/13/2013                         11.60 1.19 12.79                                    
0002051532-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22728206 REI 353089 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PAIGE, ALIA RENEE   R / T 1529 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2012                         13.01 2.27 15.28                                    
0002051532-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22728206 REI 353091 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PAIGE, ALIA RENEE   R / T 1529 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/8/2013                         13.01 1.61 14.62                                    
0002051532-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22728206 REI 353092 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PAIGE, ALIA RENEE   R / T 1529 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/7/2014                         13.66 1.01 14.67                                    
0002051532-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22728206 REI 309872 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 PAIGE, ALIA RENEE   R / T 1529 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2015                         13.66 0.33 13.99                                    
0001937609-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 19345110 REI 352899 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PETRONACI, JOSEPH 11107 BARNYARD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           1.51 0.26 1.77                                      
0001933706-2011-2011-0000-00 Jan-15 19331143 REI 386314 SL 362 Adjustment 3/8/15 PL COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES LLC 

LIMITED
148 MILESTONE WY ST C GREENVILLE SC 29616 1/6/2012                         14.22 2.48

16.70                                    
0002051510-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22728125 REI 353084 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PRICHARD, JAMES TIMOTHY 3143 PORTERTOWN RD GREENVILLE NC 27858 1/30/2012                         40.42 6.92 47.34                                    
0002051510-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22728125 REI 353085 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PRICHARD, JAMES TIMOTHY 3143 PORTERTOWN RD GREENVILLE NC 27858 4/15/2013                         41.05 4.54 45.59                                    
0002051510-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22728125 REI 353087 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 PRICHARD, JAMES TIMOTHY 3143 PORTERTOWN RD GREENVILLE NC 27858 4/22/2014                         43.04 2.57 45.61                                    
0002050605-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22723610 REI 353075 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 RABIE, DIAB J  JR 11833 KIMBERFIELD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         31.77 3.94 35.71                                    
0002050605-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22723610 REI 353076 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 RABIE, DIAB J  JR 11833 KIMBERFIELD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         33.34 2.47 35.81                                    
0002050605-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22723610 REI 353078 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 RABIE, DIAB J  JR 11833 KIMBERFIELD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         33.34 0.81 34.15                                    
0002050605-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22723610 REI 353252 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 RABIE, DIAB J JR 11833 KIMBERFIELD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         32.67 5.70 38.37                                    
0002002854-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21515145 REI 352938 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 RANDALL, WILLIAM 14214 HONEYSUCKLE RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         72.71 5.39 78.10                                    
0002002854-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21515145 REI 318066 SL 362 Adjustment 1/17/15 RANDALL, WILLIAM 14214 HONEYSUCKLE RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-6403 1/6/2015                         72.71 1.76 74.47                                    
0002052234-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22731225 REI 327203 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 RAY, MICHAEL S 11729 AVALY LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012                           3.94 0.69 4.63                                      
0001936511-2012-2012-0000-00 Aug-14 19340515 REI 243488 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 RICKS, JOAN W 2838 OAKGLADE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                           4.84 0.60 5.44                                      
0001936511-2013-2013-0000-00 Aug-14 19340515 REI 246215 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 RICKS, JOAN W 2838 OAKGLADE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                           5.08 0.38 5.46                                      
0002056095-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22756291 REI 247523 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 RILEY, HERBERT J 10403 SALVIA ST  203 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014                         86.04 6.38 92.42                                    
0002056095-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22756291 REI 247495 SL 362 Adjustment 12/13/14 RILEY, HERBERT J 10403 SALVIA ST 203 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/22/2013                         83.62 10.21 93.83                                    
0002003001-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21516219 REI 352941 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 ROBERTSON, ROBERT J PO BOX 3537 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012                         45.98 8.02 54.00                                    
0002003001-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21516219 REI 352942 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 ROBERTSON, ROBERT J PO BOX 3537 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013                         45.37 5.62 50.99                                    
0002003001-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21516219 REI 352943 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 ROBERTSON, ROBERT J PO BOX 3537 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014                         47.63 3.53 51.16                                    
0002003001-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21516219 REI 352944 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 ROBERTSON, ROBERT J PO BOX 3537 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015                         47.63 1.15 48.78                                    
0002050093-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22722121 REI 351110 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 ROBERTSON, TIMOTHY W 4800 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 7/15/2014                           5.07 0.24 5.31                                      
0002054041-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22743125 REI 326770 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 ROYER, DONALD S 233 WAINSLEY PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                           2.72 0.34 3.06                                      
0002054041-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22743125 REI 326348 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 ROYER, DONALD S 233 WAINSLEY PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6541 1/6/2012                           2.72 0.47 3.19                                      
0002054041-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22743125 REI 278084 SL 362 Adjustment 12/21/14 ROYER, DONALD S 233 WAINSLEY PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6541 1/7/2014                           2.85 0.21 3.06                                      
0001992901-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21302422 REI 327283 SL 362 Adjustment 2/1/15 RUCHO, ROBERT A 305 TRAFALGAR PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                       322.47 56.23 378.70                                  
0001992901-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21302422 REI 256087 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 RUCHO, ROBERT A 305 TRAFALGAR PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                       303.11 37.58 340.69                                  
0001992901-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21302422 REI 257135 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 RUCHO, ROBERT A 305 TRAFALGAR PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                       318.14 23.58 341.72                                  
0002003552-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21520111 REI 327130 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 SANDERS, WILLIAM S 2330 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           5.14 0.90 6.04                                      
0002050290-2012-2012-0000-00 May-14 22722372 REI 244007 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 SECHLER, WILLIAM R 5419 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         64.13 7.95 72.08                                    
0002050290-2013-2013-0000-00 May-14 22722372 REI 246765 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 SECHLER, WILLIAM R 5419 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         67.31 4.99 72.30                                    
0001992770-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21302108 REI 327296 SL 362 Adjustment 2/1/15 SLOAN CHARLENE S 825 FISHER RIDGE DR MONROE NC 28110 1/22/2014                       150.92 10.87 161.79                                  
0001934027-2011-2011-0000-00 Sep-14 19332203 REI 359291 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 SMALL, MATTHEW R 1236 PENDERBRO RD MARION SC 29571 1/6/2012                           1.51 0.26 1.77                                      
0002055221-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22752161 REI 289841 SL 362 Adjustment 1/8/15 SMITH, MICHAEL W 1526 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         15.13 2.64 17.77                                    
0002055221-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22752161 REI 289840 SL 362 Adjustment 1/8/15 SMITH, MICHAEL W 1526 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         15.13 1.88 17.01                                    
0002055221-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22752161 REI 289839 SL 362 Adjustment 1/8/15 SMITH, MICHAEL W 1526 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         15.87 1.18 17.05                                    
0002055221-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22752161 REI 289838 SL 362 Adjustment 1/8/15 SMITH, MICHAEL W 1526 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         15.87 0.38 16.25                                    
0002054492-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22746126 REI 326351 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 SOELL, ROBERT M 425 BIRKENHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/7/2012                       124.60 20.69 145.29                                  
0002054492-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22746126 REI 326771 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 SOELL, ROBERT M 425 BIRKENHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/26/2013                       123.70 14.51 138.21                                  
0002054492-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22746126 REI 267436 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 SOELL, ROBERT M 425 BIRKENHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                       126.36 9.36 135.72                                  
0002055433-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22752433 REI 353118 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 SRINIVASAN, PRAKASH 4641 WALNUT KNOLL  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/7/2012                         41.33 7.03 48.36                                    
0002055433-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22752433 REI 353120 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 SRINIVASAN, PRAKASH 4641 WALNUT KNOLL  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/21/2014                         43.07 3.11 46.18                                    
0002055433-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22752433 REI 353121 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 SRINIVASAN, PRAKASH 4641 WALNUT KNOLL  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         42.23 1.02 43.25                                    
0002055433-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22752433 REI 353119 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 SRINIVASAN, PRAKASH 4641 WALNUT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         40.23 4.99 45.22                                    
0002056795-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22764188 REI 326354 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 STEELE, DOUGLAS R 1517 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                       153.36 26.74 180.10                                  
0002056795-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22764188 REI 266506 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 STEELE, DOUGLAS R 1517 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                       153.36 19.01 172.37                                  
0002056795-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22764188 REI 267548 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 STEELE, DOUGLAS R 1517 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                       160.97 11.93 172.90                                  
0002056795-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 22764188 REI 268676 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 STEELE, DOUGLAS R 1517 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                       160.97 3.90 164.87                                  
0001933395-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 19328205 REI 326979 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TATE, ROBERT EUGENE 3568 CEDARFIELD CT CONCORD NC 28027 1/6/2012                         49.01 8.55 57.56                                    
0001933395-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 19328205 REI 326646 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TATE, ROBERT EUGENE 3568 CEDARFIELD CT CONCORD NC 28027 1/8/2013                         48.70 6.04 54.74                                    
0001933395-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 19328205 REI 326897 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TATE, ROBERT EUGENE 3568 CEDARFIELD CT CONCORD NC 28027 1/7/2014                         51.12 3.79 54.91                                    
0001933395-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 19328205 REI 327060 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TATE, ROBERT EUGENE 3568 CEDARFIELD CT CONCORD NC 28027 1/6/2015                         51.12 1.24 52.36                                    
0002003347-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21519119 REI 424107 SL 362 Adjustment 4/6/15 TAYLOR, CHARLIESE WRAY 2620 KILMARNOCK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         19.96 3.48 23.44                                    
0002003347-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21519119 REI 424108 SL 362 Adjustment 4/6/15 TAYLOR, CHARLIESE WRAY 2620 KILMARNOCK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         18.75 2.32 21.07                                    
0002003347-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 21519119 REI 424109 SL 362 Adjustment 4/6/15 TAYLOR, CHARLIESE WRAY 2620 KILMARNOCK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         19.69 1.46 21.15                                    
0002003347-2014-2014-0000-00 Oct-14 21519119 REI 262727 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 TAYLOR, CHARLIESE WRAY 2620 KILMARNOCK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         19.69 0.48 20.17                                    
0002056059-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22756251 REI 428250 SL 362 Adjustment 4/19/15 TEETER, DOROTHY W 1322 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         69.27 8.59 77.86                                    
0002056059-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22756251 REI 237221 SL 362 Adjustment 11/15/14 TEETER, DOROTHY W 1322 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         72.71 5.39 78.10                                    
0002056059-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22756251 REI 186295 SL 362 Adjustment 9/13/14 TEETER, DOROTHY W 2232 N CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         69.27 12.08 81.35                                    
0001933325-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19327201 REI 357995 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 THOMPSON, KAREN 1206 OVERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 6/18/2012                           1.59 0.24 1.83                                      
0002003615-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 21520308 REI 258750 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 TIFFANY, LINDA HAYES 13434 KINTYRE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         19.06 3.32 22.38                                    
0002003615-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 21520308 REI 260828 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/14 TIFFANY, LINDA HAYES 13434 KINTYRE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/1/2013                         19.87 2.24 22.11                                    
0002046695-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22702430 REI 427622 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TINO, ANNE W 12 LAWNSIDE RD CHELTENHAM PA 19012 1/6/2012                         30.55 5.33 35.88                                    
0002046695-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22702430 REI 427623 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TINO, ANNE W 12 LAWNSIDE RD CHELTENHAM PA 19012 1/8/2013                         26.92 3.34 30.26                                    
0002046695-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22702430 REI 351069 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 TINO, ANNE W 12 LAWNSIDE RD CHELTENHAM PA 19012 1/7/2014                         28.26 2.09 30.35                                    
0002046695-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 22702430 REI 351788 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 TINO, ANNE W 12 LAWNSIDE RD CHELTENHAM PA 19012 1/6/2015                         28.26 0.69 28.95                                    
0002055116-2011-2011-0000-00 Oct-14 22750240 REI 326353 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TRAHEY, MARGARET L 3220 BRIDGEMERE TR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8892 1/6/2012                           3.03 0.53 3.56                                      
0002055116-2012-2012-0000-00 Oct-14 22750240 REI 326776 SL 362 Adjustment 1/31/15 TRAHEY, MARGARET L 3220 BRIDGEMERE TR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8892 1/8/2013                           3.03 0.38 3.41                                      
0002055116-2013-2013-0000-00 Oct-14 22750240 REI 278114 SL 362 Adjustment 12/21/14 TRAHEY, MARGARET L 3220 BRIDGEMERE TR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8892 1/7/2014                           3.18 0.24 3.42                                      
0002052306-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22731338 REI 352278 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 TRICOLA, JOSEPH 633 CHASE AVE LYNDHURST NJ 7071 1/6/2012                           0.60 0.10 0.70                                      
0001933767-2011-2011-0000-00 Jun-14 19331208 REI 358014 SL 362 Adjustment 2/21/15 TRIESLER, J RICHARD 16505 VIRGINIA AVE WILLIAMSPORT MD 21795 1/6/2012                           0.61 0.11 0.72                                      
0002055042-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22750164 REI 427172 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TROTTER, PAUL H 1515 MOCKINGBIRD LN STE 900 CHARLOTTE NC 28209 1/6/2012                       200.56 34.97 235.53                                  
0002055042-2012-2012-0000-00 Dec-14 22750164 REI 427173 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TROTTER, PAUL H 1515 MOCKINGBIRD LN STE 900 CHARLOTTE NC 28209 1/8/2013                       198.14 24.56 222.70                                  
0002055042-2013-2013-0000-00 Dec-14 22750164 REI 427174 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TROTTER, PAUL H 1515 MOCKINGBIRD LN STE 900 CHARLOTTE NC 28209 1/7/2014                       207.96 15.41 223.37                                  
0002055042-2014-2014-0000-00 Dec-14 22750164 REI 427630 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 TROTTER, PAUL H 1515 MOCKINGBIRD LN STE 900 CHARLOTTE NC 28209 1/6/2015                       207.96 5.04 213.00                                  
0002056045-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22756237 REI 359369 SL 362 Adjustment 2/25/15 TRUSTEE OF THE R/T AGREEMENT, OF 

SANDRA L PATTERSON
2211  NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         69.58 12.13

81.71                                    
0002056045-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22756237 REI 359368 SL 362 Adjustment 2/25/15 TRUSTEE OF THE R/T AGREEMENT, OF 

SANDRA L PATTERSON
2211  NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         69.58 8.63

78.21                                    
0002056045-2013-2013-0000-00 Jul-14 22756237 REI 359370 SL 362 Adjustment 2/25/15 TRUSTEE OF THE R/T AGREEMENT, OF 

  
2211  NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         73.03 5.41 78.44                                    

0001937831-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 19345265 REI 353243 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 VANER, WOUDE PETER I 2714 HAMPTON GLEN CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                           2.12 0.37 2.49                                      
0002050255-2012-2012-0000-00 May-14 22722341 REI 244002 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 VINSON, GWENDOLYN A 5312 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/8/2013                         64.74 8.03 72.77                                    
0002050255-2013-2013-0000-00 May-14 22722341 REI 246760 SL 362 Adjustment 12/6/14 VINSON, GWENDOLYN A 5312 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/7/2014                         67.95 5.04 72.99                                    
0002003177-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21517176 REI 352956 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WAGNER, JOHN G PO BOX 1859 RUNNING SPRINGS CA 92382 1/6/2012                         31.77 5.54 37.31                                    
0002003177-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21517176 REI 352959 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WAGNER, JOHN G PO BOX 1859 RUNNING SPRINGS CA 92382 1/8/2013                         31.77 3.94 35.71                                    
0002003177-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21517176 REI 352960 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WAGNER, JOHN G PO BOX 1859 RUNNING SPRINGS CA 92382 1/7/2014                         33.34 2.47 35.81                                    
0002055154-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22752114 REI 353112 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WAINSCOTT, JANE B PO BOX 1887 SPARTA NC 28675 1/6/2012                         52.33 9.13 61.46                                    
0002055154-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22752114 REI 353113 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WAINSCOTT, JANE B PO BOX 1887 SPARTA NC 28675 1/8/2013                         52.33 6.49 58.82                                    
0002055154-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22752114 REI 309329 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 WAINSCOTT, JANE B PO BOX 1887 SPARTA NC 28675 1/7/2014                         54.93 4.07 59.00                                    
0002055154-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22752114 REI 310126 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 WAINSCOTT, JANE B PO BOX 1887 SPARTA NC 28675 1/6/2015                         54.93 1.33 56.26                                    
0002056026-2011-2011-0000-00 Jul-14 22756226 REI 186275 SL 362 Adjustment 9/13/14 WELLS, SYLVIA M 2107 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         68.36 11.92 80.28                                    
0002056026-2012-2012-0000-00 Jul-14 22756226 REI 187202 SL 362 Adjustment 9/13/14 WELLS, SYLVIA M 2107 NORTH CASTLE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         68.36 8.47 76.83                                    
0002046698-2011-2011-0000-00 Dec-14 22702433 REI 427624 SL 362 Adjustment 4/18/15 WILLIAMS, NANCY P PO BOX 2566 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012                           0.30 0.05 0.35                                      
0002002555-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 21513117 REI 352925 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WOOD, STEPHEN J 14259 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012                         84.39 14.72 99.11                                    
0002002555-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 21513117 REI 352928 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WOOD, STEPHEN J 14259 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013                         84.39 10.46 94.85                                    
0002002555-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 21513117 REI 352929 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 WOOD, STEPHEN J 14259 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         88.58 6.56 95.14                                    
0002002555-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 21513117 REI 306860 SL 362 Adjustment 1/11/15 WOOD, STEPHEN J 14259 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015                         88.58 2.15 90.73                                    
0002050595-2011-2011-0000-00 Nov-14 22723603 REI 353072 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 YONKERS, DANIEL J 13807 JONATHANS RIDGE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012                         15.13 2.64 17.77                                    
0002050595-2012-2012-0000-00 Nov-14 22723603 REI 353073 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 YONKERS, DANIEL J 13807 JONATHANS RIDGE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013                         14.83 1.84 16.67                                    
0002050595-2014-2014-0000-00 Nov-14 22723603 REI 353074 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 YONKERS, DANIEL J 13807 JONATHANS RIDGE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2015                         15.56 0.38 15.94                                    
0002050595-2013-2013-0000-00 Nov-14 22723603 REI 352367 SL 362 Adjustment 2/14/15 YONKERS, DANIEL J 619 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014                         15.56 1.15 16.71                                    

22,578.97          2,327.06               24,906.03                            
24,906.03                            



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $  2,543.92 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $22,050.00 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $     268.77    
 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5271 Federal Seized Funds    $24,862.98     
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds 
received through DEA Task Force. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 22nd day of June 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-441801 HIDTA OT REIMBURSEMENT $340.86 
10000001-441801 HIDTA OT REIMBURSEMENT $  78.23   
10000001-441801 HIDTA OT REIMBURSEMENT $251.45   
10000001-441801 HIDTA OT REIMBURSEMENT $  44.70   
 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5801 WAGES-OVERTIME(CID)  $715.24   
     
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Federal Task Force 
(HIDTA) overtime revenues received in excess of budgeted revenues. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 22nd day of June 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4419 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REIMB $760.61 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5270 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REIMB  $760.61 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Controlled 
Substance Tax Assessment revenues received in excess of budgeted revenues. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 22nd day of June 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Oscar Drive Assessment Public Hearing and Resolution to Proceed 
      
DATE: June 16, 2016 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
 
Background/Issue: 
  
The Board has accepted the petition to make improvements to Oscar Drive in the Forest Brook Subdivision and has 
adopted the Preliminary Assessment Resolution, setting a public hearing on the matter for June 22, 2015.  
 
Streets- The Public Works Department has obtained pricing for the needed work in the amount of $82,710. The amount of 
the cashed surety bond is $49,710, which is available for the project, leaving $32,969 to be assessed. The petition 
requested that this amount be shared equally among the 20 lots in the subdivision, at 100% of the cost, plus admin and 
legal costs.  
 
Street Lighting- The petition also requested that the unpaid street lighting up-front charges be also assessed by the Town 
as part of the street assessment. Unfortunately, NC General Statutes do not allow cities/towns to assess street lighting 
costs, (counties can) so the Town will need to work with the HOA to front these costs (approx. $9,000) and have the HOA 
reimburse the Town over time, perhaps a 5 year contract between the HOA and the Town. This will need to be a future 
action by the Board.  
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Open Public Hearing and receive citizen comment on the proposed project and assessment. If after closing the hearing, the 
Board wishes to proceed with the project, adopt resolution as prepared by Mr. Buckley.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The Town will be fronting the cost of $32,969, to be charged to code 452000-5314 in the new FY 15-16 budget. The 
balance will be from the cashed bond, funds to be transferred from the county to the Town.  Citizens may pay their 
assessments back to the town in a lump sum or in up to 8 annual payments at an interest rate of 5%.  
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
To identify, plan, design, fund and build transportation facilities that efficiently and effectively serve the community in a 
cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Recommended Motion: (2 motions) 
 
#1 Motion to adopt Resolution Directing that the Improvements to Oscar Drive Within the Forest Brook Subdivision be 
Undertaken as prepared by Mr. Buckley. 
 
#2 Motion that the Town Public Works Director and Finance Director meet with the HOA and develop a plan to front the 
cost of the street light fees and develop a plan for reimbursement, and present back to the Board at a future meeting.   

 
 

 



RESOLUTION BY THE TOWN BOARD DIRECTING THAT 
THE IMPROVEMENTS TO OSCAR DRIVE WITHIN THE 

FOREST BROOK ESTATES SUBDIVISION BE UNDERTAKEN 
 
 

WHEREAS, on the 13th day of April 2015, the property owners in the Forest Brook 
Estates Subdivision, being property owners adjacent to Oscar Drive, petitioned the Town Board 
of Commissioners to make repairs and/or reconstruct the street, sidewalks, curb, gutters and 
storm drainage systems on Oscar Drive to bring it up to the Town standards for acceptance into 
the Town street system and to assess 100% of the cost thereof to the adjoining property owners; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Board on May 26, 2015, adopted a Preliminary Assessment 

Resolution pursuant to the provisions of N.C.G.S. § 16A-223, which said Resolution amongst 
other things included an Order calling for a public hearing to be held on June 22, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, after due notice to the public and to the owners of the effected property, a 

public hearing thereon was duly held; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town 

of Matthews, North Carolina: 
 

1. That Oscar Drive within the Forest Brook Estates Subdivision be improved in the 
following manner: 

 
a. Reconstruction and repairs pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 160A, 

Article 10, of the General Statutes, to bring the street to an acceptable standard to add it 
to the Town street system. 

 
2. That 100% of the costs of said improvements be hereafter assessed upon the 

property receiving the improvements according to the assessment basis set out in the Petition as 
approved by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
3. That the Assessment herein provided for shall be payable in cash or if any 

property owner shall so elect he shall have the option and privilege of paying the assessment in 
eight (8) equal annual installments, said installments to bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum. 
 
 This the 22nd day of June 2015 
 
 
              
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Town Clerk 



City of Charlotte

Southeast Corridor
Transit Study

Town of Matthews 
Board of Commissioners

June 22, 2015



City of Charlotte

2025 Transit & 
Land Use Plan 
(established five 
transit corridors)

Major Investment Study
(BRT selected; LRT to be 

studied further)

Draft EIS
(BRT reconfirmed; 

LRT to be reevaluated 
in the future)

Fast Lanes Study
(initial review of 
managed lanes)

Independence Blvd. 
Area Plan

(reassessed land use 
role of corridor)

1998 2002 2006 2009 2011 2015

ULI Study
(focus rail away from US 74)

MTC Decision
(remove preservation of US74 

median for rapid transit; 
initiate new transit study)

Southeast 
Corridor 

Transit Study 
(“fresh look” at 

corridor 
options)

Corridor Planning History



City of Charlotte

Study Goals

Define a rail fixed 
guideway alignment 
(not in the median of 
Independence Blvd.) 

to serve future 
transportation needs 
and promote the land 

use policies of the 
Independence Blvd. 
Area Plan and the 
Town of Matthews

Provide an interim 
bus transit 

strategy that 
utilizes the future 
managed lanes 

proposed on 
Independence 

Blvd.

Coordinate with 
land development 

strategies to 
protect and 

preserve the rail 
fixed guideway

alignment



City of Charlotte

The study is…
A long-term view of 
a transit vision for 
the Southeast 
Corridor 

The study is not…
Intended to identify 
a “shovel ready” rail 
project”





Southeast Corridor Transit Study



City of Charlotte

The study is…
A definition of rail 
alignment and 
technology

The study is not…
A fully detailed and 
designed rail project





Southeast Corridor Transit Study



City of Charlotte

The study is…
A bus operations 
plan for future US74 
managed lanes

The study is not…
A bus operations 
plan as a 
replacement for a 
rail project





Southeast Corridor Transit Study



City of Charlotte

The study is…
Information to be 
considered in future 
system funding 
discussions

The study is not…
Constrained by 
current CATS 
financial projections





Southeast Corridor Transit Study



City of Charlotte

Study Scope and Schedule

Goals / 
Background

Initial Definition Refined Definition

Recs. and 
Strategies

RAIL

BUS

• Alignments 
• Technologies

• Alignments
• Technologies
• Station Locations
• Cost Estimates

Operations Plan

• Service 
Recommendations

Public Involvement

2015 2016
Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun



City of Charlotte

Initial Public and Stakeholder Outreach

• On-going stakeholder outreach
– Meetings with organizations and groups
– Attendance at special events

• Public workshops
– Three workshops planned for early August
– Matthews Town Hall workshop on Tuesday, August 4 (6 PM)



 

 
  
 
 
 
Reappropriation of Funds from General Fund to Capital Improvements Fund  
 
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
DATE:  June 17, 2015 
FROM: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 
 
Background/issue: 
 
On September 17, 2014 the Town Board endorsed a budget transfer of $347,875 (actual figure transferred was 
$410,000) from the South Trade Street bond proceeds to reimburse the General Fund. See copy of September 
17th memo below in italic.  
 
The reasoning behind this move was design and acquisition costs associated with this project were being paid out 
of General Fund. In actuality costs associated with the South Trade Street project were being paid for out the 
Capital Improvements Fund. 
 
The impact to the General Fund is a reduction of $410,000 in revenue. Thanks goes to Chris Tucker for 
discovering this oversight.  
 
Approve Revised Budget for S. Trade Street Project DATE: September 17, 2014  
 
FROM: Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works  
 
Background/Issue: In July 2013 the Board adopted a budget for the “Modified” S. Trade Street project. Since bids have now 
been received for the construction, along with other known expenses, that budget needs to be revised.  
 
Proposal/Solution: Attached is a revised budget document for the S. Trade street project. This budget incorporates the known 
contract amounts for most items, though several are still estimates. I call your attention to the notes regarding reimbursements 
to the General Fund. Financial Impact: Bond sale and receipt of proceeds will lead to an almost immediate reimbursement to 
the general Fund of $347,875 for the actual expenses that have been incurred since July 2013. Upon project completion, 
funds may be available to provide additional reimbursement to the General Fund for past expenditures since the inception of 
the project, or may be used for other roadway activities.  
 
Related Town Goal: -To identify, plan, design, fund and build transportation facilities that efficiently and effectively serve the 
community in a cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
-To provide financial resources in a prudent and responsible manner through traditional and alternative sources of revenue, 
effective budgeting and cost control, while maintain a healthy fund balance.  
 
Recommended Motion: Motion to approve the revised budget for the S. Trade Street project, as attached, along with the 
related notes. 
 
Financial impact: 
The re-appropriation of the $410,000 from the Fund Balance will impact the Fund Balance percentage. However, 
the intention of these funds from the very beginning was to repay the Town back for the additional costs incurred 
for all the design work involved in the South Trade Street project.  
 
Related Town Goals and Strategies: 



 
Financial performance: to provide financial resources in a prudent and responsible manner through traditional and 
alternate sources of revenue, effective budgeting, and cost control with a focus on maintaining a healthy fund 
balance.  
 
 
Recommended action: 
 
Motion to re-appropriate $410,000 from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund.  

 



 

 

 

 
   GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1998-Present. 

 

 

 

June 17, 2015 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
 
CC: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 Jamie Justice, Assistant Town Manager 
 Lori Cannapino, Town Clerk 
 
RE: Monthly Financial Summary 
 
 
Please find attached for your review the Monthly Financial Summary through May 2015. As we begin to close 
out the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (fye15) and move towards Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (fye16), I would like to lift up a 
few highlights for your information.  
 
Revenues: 

 The Town has collected 84.09% of budgeted revenues through April.  

 Sales Tax is currently trending $200,000 or 8% above budget. Reminder that sales tax revenues run two 
months in arrears. 

 Utility Sales Tax and Telecommunications Sales Tax are both trending above budget. However, the next 
distribution will not be received until June 15, in order to confirm any significant revenue gains. 

 
Expenditures: 

 Most departments are currently at or below their budget paces as General Fund expenditures are at 
84.80% of budget. 

 Large outstanding expenditures remaining – 2015 Spring Paving Contract 
 
Other items of note: 

 Tax Revaluation Refunds through May are $442,050. 
 

 

 



ORIGINAL AMENDED ACTUAL Y-T-D % FY 14 FY 13 FY 12

REVENUES BUDGET BUDGET COLLECTED ACTUALS ACTUALS ACTUALS

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES 9,906,500$         9,906,500$           10,126,031$       102.22% 9,626,326$                 9,378,975$          9,525,034$            

TAX REVAL REFUNDS -$                    -$                     (442,050)$           719,186$                    636,609$             632,841$               

MOTOR VEHICLE TAXES 706,300$            706,300$              725,481$            102.72% 719,186$                    636,609$             632,841$               

AUTO TAG FEE 587,500$            587,500$              414,325$            70.52% 676,770$                    276,744$             280,364$               

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAXES 2,495,861$         2,495,861$           2,021,977$         81.01% 1,742,088$                 1,606,775$          1,686,697$            

POWELL BILL FUNDS 750,000$            766,626$              766,103$            99.93% 745,750$                    726,986$             698,539$               

BEER & WINE TAX / ABC DISTRIBUTIONS 188,300$            188,300$              218,473$            116.02% 124,243$                    158,250$             118,396$               

PIPED NATURAL GAS TAX 150,000$            150,000$              23,947$              15.96% 69,560$                      59,923$               54,639$                 

ELECTRIC SERVICES TAX 880,650$            880,650$              614,596$            69.8% 459,938$                    464,131$             484,522$               

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TAX 331,200$            331,200$              193,027$            58.28% 169,934$                    180,553$             194,300$               

CABLE FRANCHISE TAX 196,692$            196,692$              116,698$            59.33% 102,502$                    103,615$             109,346$               

STORM WATER FEES 613,758$            613,758$              491,172$            80.03% 433,909$                    502,050$             493,254$               

PRIVILEGE LICENSE 200,000$            200,000$              133,537$            66.77% 190,343$                    189,971$             185,558$               

PARKS & REC / CULTURAL ARTS 317,000$            317,000$              416,814$            131.49% 389,705$                    412,932$             435,482$               

G/O BOND REIMBURSEMENTS (CMUD) 450,063$            450,063$              25,031$              5.56% 473,388$                    481,550$             499,875$               

ALL OTHER REVENUES & FUNDING 1,577,701$         1,834,060$           1,085,122$         59.17% 777,626$                    1,606,575$          1,568,899$            

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 346,844$            531,064$              19,000                3.58% 0 (1,150,615.0)$      0

19,698,369$       20,155,574$         16,949,284$       84.09% 17,420,454$               16,271,633$        17,600,587$          

ORIGINAL AMENDED ACTUAL Y-T-D %  FY 14 FY 13 FY 12

EXPENDITURES BUDGET BUDGET SPENT ACTUALS ACTUALS ACTUALS

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 3,501,613$         3,503,977$           3,162,545$         90.26% 3,028,823$                 1,765,960$          1,619,894$            

POLICE/ANIMAL CONTROL 5,519,052$         5,690,142$           5,163,587$         90.75% 4,909,724$                 5,666,656$          4,955,267$            

FIRE/EMS 1,811,268$         1,938,403$           1,563,312$         80.65% 1,094,938$                 1,264,620$          1,083,994$            

PUBLIC WORKS 3,661,102$         3,784,113$           2,517,523$         66.53% 2,782,115$                 3,335,632$          2,739,020$            

SANITATION 1,923,200$         1,923,200$           1,574,418$         81.86% 1,552,075$                 1,520,520$          1,485,761$            

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT 451,531$            451,531$              372,078$            82.40% 357,425$                    391,234$             348,256$               

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 20,000$              40,000$                22,661$              56.65% 11,826$                      11,947$               16,313$                 

PARKS & REC / CULTURAL ARTS 1,142,550$         1,174,819$           1,146,149$         97.56% 999,695$                    1,167,116$          1,389,911$            

DEBT SERVICE 1,372,383$         1,372,383$           1,304,299$         95.04% 1,070,415$                 1,618,430$          1,315,852$            

CONTINGENCY / TRANFERS TO CIP 295,670$            277,006$              265,670$            95.91% 367,483$                    2,028,290$          2,062,821$            

19,698,369$       20,155,574$         17,092,242$       84.80% 16,174,519$               18,770,405$        17,017,089$          

Y-T-D FUND BALANCE INCREASE (DECREASE) -$                           -$                             (142,958)$           

NOTES:

NOTES:

REVENUES

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES Receive majority in months of Nov, Dec, Jan

MOTOR VEHICLE TAXES Receive monthly distributions

AUTO TAG FEE Receive monthly distributions

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAXES Receive monthly distributions - 2 months in arrears

POWELL BILL FUNDS Receive equal distributions semi-annual: Oct & Jan

BEER & WINE TAX / ABC DISTRIBUTIONS Receive quarterly from County, annual from state in May

PIPED NATURAL GAS TAX Receive quarterly from State.  First fiscal distribution received in Dec

ELECTRIC SERVICES TAX Receive quarterly from State.  First fiscal distribution received in Dec

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TAX Receive quarterly from State.  First fiscal distribution received in Dec

CABLE FRANCHISE TAX Receive quarterly from State.  First fiscal distribution received in Dec

STORM WATER FEES Receive monthly from County

PRIVILEGE LICENSE To be invoiced in April, due by May 31

PARKS & REC / CULTURAL ARTS Collected through out year, based on events and programming

EXPENDITURES

Large expenses incurred during July/Aug each yr due to annual contracts, insurance premiums, dues, capital outlay (vehicles/equipment) purchases

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

TOWN OF MATTHEWS
          FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT

          FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015   (JULY-MAY)

G E N E R A L    F U N D PRIOR YRS COMPARSION

$10,126,031 

$(442,050)

$725,481 

$414,325 

$2,021,977 

$766,103 

$218,473 

$23,947 
$614,596 

$193,027 

$116,698 $491,172 

$133,537 

$416,814 
$25,031 

$1,085,122 19,000 
AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES

TAX REVAL REFUNDS

MOTOR VEHICLE TAXES

AUTO TAG FEE

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAXES

POWELL BILL FUNDS

BEER & WINE TAX / ABC DISTRIBUTIONS

PIPED NATURAL GAS TAX

ELECTRIC SERVICES TAX

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TAX

CABLE FRANCHISE TAX

STORM WATER FEES

PRIVILEGE LICENSE

PARKS & REC / CULTURAL ARTS

G/O BOND REIMBURSEMENTS (CMUD)

ALL OTHER REVENUES & FUNDING

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

 $-  $1,000,000  $2,000,000  $3,000,000  $4,000,000  $5,000,000  $6,000,000

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

POLICE/ANIMAL CONTROL

FIRE/EMS

PUBLIC WORKS

SANITATION

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PARKS & REC / CULTURAL ARTS

DEBT SERVICE

CONTINGENCY

6/17/2015        3:41 PM C:\Users\ctucker\Desktop\FY 14-15 Monthly Report May 2015 1



ORIGINAL AMENDED ACTUAL Y-T-D %  FY 14 FY 13 FY 12

REVENUES BUDGET BUDGET COLLECTED ACTUALS ACTUALS ACTUALS

TOURISM MERCHANDISE 1,000$                1,000$                  585$                   58.49%

OCCUPANCY TAX 429,629$            429,629$              406,880$            94.70%

PREPARED FOOD & BEVERAGE TAX 809,859$            809,859$              413,086$            51.01%

RENTAL CAR TAX 131,328$            131,328$              109,734$            83.56%

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 1,000$                293,000$              292,000$            99.66%

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED -$                    0 0

1,372,816$         1,664,816$           1,222,285$         73.42% 1,233,814$                     175,682$                1,050,377$                

ORIGINAL AMENDED ACTUAL Y-T-D % FY 14 FY 13 FY 12

EXPENDITURES BUDGET BUDGET SPENT ACTUALS ACTUALS ACTUALS

MARKETING 25,000$              25,000$                5,684$                22.74% 20,213$                      -$                     -$                       

DECORATIONS/BANNERS/FLAGS 45,000$              45,000$                1,900$                4.22% 30,199$                      -$                     -$                       

DEPOT EXHIBIT ITEMS 2,500$                2,500$                  162$                   6.48% 1,572$                        544$                    1,615$                   

LANDSCAPING 10,000$              10,000$                0 0.00% -$                            19,638$               -$                       

TOURISM PROJECTS 86,084$              49,584$                16,381$              33.04% 500$                           93,442$               41,146$                 

MATTHEWS HISTORICAL 40,000$              40,000$                35,534$              88.84% 34,617$                      184,916$             50,000$                 

SPORTSPLEX 194,075$            486,075$              373,667$            76.87% 66,519$                      437,500$             -$                       

FULLWOOD THEATER 26,000$              26,000$                16,544$              63.63% -$                            -$                     -$                       

OUTEN POTTERY 0 36,500$                6,700$                18.36% -$                            -$                     -$                       

TOURISM GRANTS 60,000$              60,000$                44,500$              74.17% 10,000$                      -$                     5,500$                   

MATTHEWS ALIVE! 60,000$              60,000$                60,000$              100.00% 105,000$                    41,247$               23,750$                 

ASC SOUTH DIRECTOR 10,000$              10,000$                10,000$              100.00% 10,000$                      10,000$               10,000$                 

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 609,157$            609,157$              0 0.00% 31,200$                      773,489$             667,508$               

TRANSFER TO HEALTH FUND 0 0 0 0.00% -$                            -$                     -$                       

TRANSFER TO CIP 205,000$            205,000$              205,000$            100.00% 220,000$                    50,000$               -$                       

ROTARY 0 0 0 0 -$                            3,500$                 2,500$                   

MARA 0 0 0 0 -$                            9,000$                 8,500$                   

PLAYHOUSE 0 0 0 0 27,250$                      29,000$               30,500$                 

CHAMBER 0 0 0 0 10,500$                      11,500$               10,500$                 

CCBC 0 0 0 0 1,000$                        -$                     -$                       

AMERICAN LEGION 0 0 0 0 750$                           -$                     -$                       

BUTLER BAND 0 0 0 0 500$                           -$                     -$                       

WOMAN'S CLUB 0 0 0 0 -$                            1,000$                 -$                       

1,372,816$         1,664,816$           776,072$            46.62% 569,820$                    1,664,776$          851,519$               

-$                    -$                     446,213$            

NOTES:

REVENUES

TOURISM MERCHANDISE

OCCUPANCY TAX Receive monthly distributions

PREPARED FOOD & BEVERAGE TAX Receive equal distributions semi-annual: Oct &Mar

RENTAL CAR TAX Receive monthly distributions

 TOURISM TOTAL REVENUE ONLY AVAILABLE

BREAKDOWN AS TO CATEGORY NOT AVAILABLE 

TOURISM REVENUE TOTAL

TOURISM FUND EXPENDITURE TOTAL

Y-T-D FUND BALANCE INCREASE/(DECREASE)

T O U R I S M   F U N D PRIOR YRS COMPARSION

$585 

$406,880 

$413,086 

$109,734 

$292,000 
0

TOURISM MERCHANDISE

OCCUPANCY TAX

PREPARED FOOD & BEVERAGE TAX

RENTAL CAR TAX

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

 $-  $50,000  $100,000  $150,000  $200,000  $250,000  $300,000  $350,000  $400,000

MARKETING

DECORATIONS/BANNERS/FLAGS

DEPOT EXHIBIT ITEMS

LANDSCAPING

TOURISM PROJECTS

MATTHEWS HISTORICAL

SPORTSPLEX

FULLWOOD THEATER

OUTEN POTTERY

TOURISM GRANTS

MATTHEWS ALIVE!

ASC SOUTH DIRECTOR

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

TRANSFER TO CIP

6/17/2015        3:41 PM C:\Users\ctucker\Desktop\FY 14-15 Monthly Report May 2015 2



 
 
 
 

Greenway Crossing--  S. Trade Street & ACTS  
      
DATE: June 15, 2015 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
  
The Town manager has asked that I brief the Board on this issue: 
 
When the ACTS project was approved there was a provision in the zoning conditions for a signalized crosswalk 
from the end of the current greenway on S. Trade, near Main Street across the road to the ACTS side of the road, 
then the greenway itself would run along S. Trade Street from there all the way to Fullwood. There was an 
impression left that this signal would be a “HAWK” type signal, one that would actually give a red signal to 
motorists, allowing the pedestrians to cross.  
 
In reviewing the plans that was prepared by ACTS the NCDOT has made several changes which can be seen on 
the attached plan sheets: 
 
1. The crosswalk has been moved about 30 feet to the south to take advantage of the split in the traffic being 
created by the addition of a left turn lane to Country Place. This will require that they add to the existing sidewalk 
on the east siede of the road.  
 
2. There will now be an actual refuge island constructed in the area. This is shown in the diagrams.  
 
3. The DOT did not approve a HAWK type signal at this location, but they did approve a pedestrian activated 
flashing signal. This will provide a flashing yellow warning to drivers of pedestrians in the area. We will also add 
Yield to Pedestrians in the Crosswalk similar to those downtown, too.  A photo of the signal that has been 
approved is attached.    
 
Should you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
 
 

 













 
 
 
 

Approve Sidewalk R/W Purchase- E. John Street 
      
DATE: June 16, 2015 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Background/Issue: 
  
W.E. Love Enterprises owns the land where the Finz Restaurant is located. Last fall the storm drain system failed, 
probably triggered by last summer’s flooding.  There were several enormous sink holes in their parking lot. In 
making the needed repairs they had to remove the existing sidewalk. During the repairs, which cost the owners in 
the almost $100,000, it was discovered that the sidewalk that had been built a number of years earlier was not on 
the public R/W but was on their property. They indicated that in order to restore the sidewalk we would need to 
obtain an easement from them.  Using a composite of prices for R/W we were paying on the S. Trade street 
project, and taking into account that this was downtown property, we negotiated a price of $4,101, or $3.00 per 
square foot.     
 
See the attached deed and map.  
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Mr. Buckley indicates that the Board needs to ratify this transaction so that it’s reflected in the minutes.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
$4,101 was paid in February 2015, charged to the sidewalk M&R section of the Public Works budget.  
 
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
To identify, plan, design, fund and build transportation facilities that efficiently and effectively serve the 
community in a cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Motion to ratify the purchase of sidewalk easement from W.E. Love Enterprises in the amount of $4,101.  

 
 

 

 









 

 
  
 
 
 
Termination of Contract with Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks 
Commission 
 
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
DATE:  June 17, 2015 
FROM: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 
 
Background/issue: 
 
The Town of Matthews was prepared to purchase the Outen Pottery property provided the deed restrictions were 
removed. The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks Commission was unable to get the deed restriction 
removed and decided to go forward and purchase the property themselves. Attached is a document that 
terminates our agreement with them. As part of the original agreement, we agreed that we would cover the costs 
of the environmental studies even if the closing did not occur; the total cost is $4,700. These funds are eligible for 
the use of Tourism Funds.  
 
It is the intent of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks Commission to continue working to get the deed 
restriction removed. At that time they will come before the Town of Matthews and ask us to purchase the property. 
It is also their intent to stabilize the building after they purchase the property.  
  
 
Financial impact: 
 
$4,700 to pay for environmental assessment costs.  
 
 
Related Town Goals and Strategies: 
 
Quality of Life - To maintain our small town identity by providing a vibrant downtown, pedestrian friendly 
community, extensive greenspace system, and recreation and cultural activities. 
 
 
Recommended action: 
 
Authorize the Town Manager to sign the termination agreement and pay the $4,700 for the environmental 
assessment costs.  





ATTORNEY-CLIENT REPRESENTATION 
AGREEMENT 

(2015-2016 Fiscal Year) 
 
 Between the Town of Matthews, whose mailing address is 232 Matthews Station St., Matthews, 
N.C., 28105, and the law firm of , whose mailing address is 7257 Pineville-Matthews Road, Suite 
2001, Charlotte, N.C., 28226. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Matthews is a municipal corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina and is desirous to obtain legal representation to the Board of 
Commissioners of the Town of Matthews; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Charles R. Buckley, III, a senior principal in the law firm, is an attorney licensed to 
practice law in the State of North Carolina and is desirous to assist the said Town of Matthews as a 
legal advisor to the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1. That the Town of Matthews, North Carolina, hereby retains legal services from the said 
law firm of Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie and, in particular, hereby designates 
Charles R. Buckley, III, to be its Town Attorney to represent it by being legal advisor to the Board of 
Commissioners pursuant to authority granted by the General Statutes of North Carolina and in 
particular, in Chapter 160A. 
 
 2. That the said law firm of Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie hereby 
agrees to assist the Town of Matthews by becoming legal advisors to the Board of Commissioners and 
further hereby authorizes its senior principal Charles R. Buckley, III, to act as Town Attorney for the 
Town of Matthews and as compensation therefor, agrees to take the position based on the following fee 
schedule: 
 

a. That on or about the 1st day of the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2015 Cranford, 
Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie shall receive a retainer in the amount of $18,000.00, 
payable to the said Charles Buckley, establishing the attorney-client relationship between the said 
Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews and Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen 
& Buie 

 
b. That, additionally, Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie shall bill the 

Town of Matthews on a monthly basis as follows: 
 

i. That the said Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie shall 
receive a monthly retainer in the amount of $1,500.00 for which the said Charles R. 
Buckley, III, or a partner in the law firm, shall attend regular meetings of the Board of 
Commissioners and shall provide telephone and e-mail consultation legal services from all 
elected and appointed officials and employees of the Town concerning Town business 
regardless of the number of hours per month incurred in performing said services. 

 
ii. That additionally, any other legal services provided by the said law firm, other 

than enumerated above, shall be billed at the rate of $______ per hour, which legal 
services shall include, but not be limited to, attendance at special meetings of the Board of 
Commissioners and meetings of the Zoning and Planning Board as requested, research, 
representation before other boards and commissions, and in-court representation, legal 
document preparation, general correspondence, telephone consultations initiated by the 
said law firm and telephone consultations or conferences initiated by others than 
enumerated above concerning strictly Town business, and any and all other legal services 
requested by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
iii. That the said law firm will be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses 

incurred during the term as legal advisors to the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
 



c. That in addition to the monthly billings, the said law firm shall give credit on its 
monthly statement to the Town of Matthews in the amount of $1,500.00 as a one-twelfth credit of the 
above-referenced $18,000.00 retainer.  It is agreed, acknowledged and consented to by the parties 
hereto that the original $18,000.00 retainer shall be used by the said law firm immediately as it sees fit.  
At the end of the twelve month fiscal year, the said retainer shall be credited back in full to the Town of 
Matthews. 

 
d. That in the event the said Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews shall 

terminate the services of the said law firm as legal advisors to the Board of Commissioners prior to the 
expiration of the 2015-2016 fiscal year then, and in that event, the said Board of Commissioners shall 
be reimbursed any balances not credited on the said $18,000.00 retainer, less any outstanding amounts 
then due and owing to the said law firm less, further, the sum of $5,500.00 which shall constitute a 
portion/part of severance compensation to the said law firm.  Any balances then due and owing to the 
Town of Matthews shall be reimbursed by the said law firm in four equal installments over a ninety-
day period. 

 
e. That in the event the said law firm shall terminate representation as legal advisors to 

the Board of Commissioners on its own volition then, in that event, the said law firm shall reimburse 
the Town of Matthews the remaining outstanding non-credited balance of the said $18,000.00, less any 
amounts due and owing by the Town of Matthews to the said law firm. 
 
 WHEREFORE, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals this the 22 day of June, 2015. 
 
TOWN OF MATTHEWS 
 
By:___________________________________(SEAL) 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Town Clerk                                                                 
 
Cranford, Buckley, Schultze, Tomchin, Allen & Buie 
 
______________________________________(SEAL) 
By:  Charles R. Buckley, III 


	7-Fire-EMS_Citizens_Academy.pdf
	��Fire & EMS �Citizens’ Academy�2015
	The Program
	Participants
	Presenters
	Topics
	Funding
	Recruitment

	12B-tax_refunds.pdf
	062215 Matthews SL362 Misc Pt 7.pdf
	Matthews SL362 Misc 7


	12C1-budget_HIDTA_24862.98.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds received through DEA Task Force.

	12C2-budget_HIDTA_715.24.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Federal Task Force (HIDTA) overtime revenues received in excess of budgeted revenues.

	12C3-budget_controlled_sub_760.61.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Controlled Substance Tax Assessment revenues received in excess of budgeted revenues.

	14A-CATS_SE_corridor_study.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9


